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In 2006, Alea completed its transition from an on-going insurance operation to a business in run-off. The
initial stages of run-off involved embedding the run-off strategy within the Group’s operating platform and
simultaneously making the organisational changes necessary to position the Group to deliver its plan.

As previously stated, the Group’s run-off plan includes both a proactive cost management programme to
improve operational efficiency and an aggressive claims management and commutation strategy. The key
cbjectives of the plan are to preserve net assets through effective management of the run-off of the Group's
balance sheet, to manage other operating expenses and finance costs to levels less than or equal to
investment income and, ultimately, to return capital to shareholders,

Our goal of optimising shareholder value during run-off and enhancing the potential sale value of the
business is dependent on the Group's ability to reduce potential liabilities and piovide assurance to
regulators of the certainty of the valuation of liabilities in relation to the Group’s assets. [n this respect, the
Group has made good progress in 2006 in reducing total insurance contract liabilities by $931.0 million
while preserving its capital base. Progress has been made in commencing the realisiation of distributable
Group assets with the gaining of regulatory approval for intra-Group capital distributions totalling $126
million to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda), the Group holding company, from two of our regulated
subsidiaries.

As previously disclosed, in the fourth quarter of 2006, the Group announced it had completed the sale of its
excess and surplus lines carrier, Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company, to a member company
of Praetorian Financial Group. This transaction resulted in a net gain of $4.3 million. In addition, the Group
further streamlined its organisation by liguidating Alea Financial UK Limited, Alea Technology Limited, Alea
Jersey Limited, Alea Global Risk Limited and Alea Holdings Guernsey Limited. These smaller liquidations
evidence the Group's efforts to simplify its operating structure.

Dividend
The Company has not proposed a dividend for the 2006 financial year.

Board Changes

In 2006, Mark Cloutier was appointed Group Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director upon the
departure of Mark L. Ricciardelli who resigned from his post as CEO and as an Executwve Director, Kirk H
Lusk was simultaneously appointed as an Executive Director. Mr. Lusk currently serves as the Group Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer. The combination of Mr. Cloutier's wealth of run-off expertise
and Mr. Lusk’s strong financial skills and institutional knowledge have been instrumental in ensuring the
effective execution of the run-off plan to date. The Board expresses its gratitude to both Mr. Cloutier and
Mr. Lusk for their leadership during this challenging year for Alea. In addition, the Board wishes to express
its appreciation of Mr. Ricciardelli's services to the Group.

Also during the year, Edward B. Jobe resigned from the Board of Directors. Mr. Jobe had served on the
Board as an independent Non-Executive Director and as a member of the Audii Committee since
September 2004. The Board wishes to express its appreciation of Mr. Jobe’s contributions to the Group.

John Reeve
Chairman
3 April 2007




In 2006, Alea completed its transition from an on-going
insurance operation to a business in run-off.

Financial Performance

Net insurance premium revenue in 2006 of
$215.9 million' (2005: $1,086.7 million), with
the reduction reflecting the impact of the
Group’s decision to cease writing
new/renewal business and place its
operations into run-off.

Investment income of $94.8 million (2005:
$89.1 million).

Other operating expenses for 2006 were
$66.6 million (2005: $145.3% million).

Loss after tax in 2006 of $0.8 million® (2005:
loss after tax of $178.9 million).

Basic and diluted loss per share of $0.00
(2005: loss per share of $1.03).*

Insurance contracts liabilities decreased by
32.4% from $2,872.5 million at 31 December
2005 to $1,941.5 million at 31 December
2006.

Operational Highlights

Staff headcount reduced to 137 as at 31
December 2006 down from 284 as at 31
December 2005.

Simplification of Group6 organisation through
liquidation of five smaller corporate entities.

Net asset value of $2.79 per share® (£1.42
per share) compared with 31 December 2005
of $2.82 per share (£1.43 when translated at
the 31 December 2006 exchange rate or
£1.63 per share when translated at the 31
December 2005 exchange rate).

Net asset value at 31 December 2006 was
impacted by cumulative unrealised losses on
investments of $23.7 million which equates to
$0.14 per share (31 December 2005:
cumulative losses of $12.7 million equating to
$0.07 per share).

Favourable reserves development in 2006 of
$5.7 milion, net of reinsurance,
commutations and discount {2005: adverse
reserves development of $123.1 million, net
of reinsurance, commutations and discount).

2006 performance remains within the
financial covenants under the Group's bank
credit agreement.

During the period, the Group sold Alea North
America Specialty Insurance Company
(*“ANASIC™) to a member company of
Praetorian Financial Group, Inc.
(“Praetorian”) realising a net gain of $ 4.3
million.

Financial information presented herein has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Except where specifically indicated all statements refer to the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 or 2005.

The $145.3 million is stated after adding back $49.9 million of expenses that were reclassified at 31 December 2005
from other operating expenses to acquisilion costs in accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.
These results have been prepared on a going concem basis. The Directors consider this to be the appropriate basis as set

£1.42 per share at an exchange rate of $1.97=£1 (2005:£1.43 per share at an exchange rate of $1.97 = £1 or £1.63 per

Standards (“IFRS").
Notes:
1.
2.
3.
forth in Note 2 of the Audited Financial Statements.
4. Weighted average number of ordinary shares of 173.7 million {2005: 173.9 million).
5.
share at an exchange rate of $1.73 = £1).
6.

“Group” refers to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd, and all its subsidiaries. “Company” refers to Alea Group Holdings

{Bermuda) Ltd only.
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In the fourth quarter of 2005, Alea Group announced its intentions to cease underwriting new and renewal
business and place its insurance and reinsurance operations into run-off. Accordingly, throughout 2006 the
Group has conducted its affairs as a company in run-off.

As a run-off company, our purpose is to crystallise and ultimately release to shareholders the capital in the
Group that heretofore had been used to support the insurance and reinsurance enterprise when it was still
active in the sector. Our mission is quite simple: to preserve, and if possible grow the capital base of the
Group, pay our obligations as they become due and make capital available for early distribution.

In order to make capital available for distribution the focus of the organisation must be on reducing the
amount of capital required to support the business. With that said, our most significant capital requirements
come from three main areas:

» exposure to new claims on unexpired policies and reinsurance contracts;
+ volatility in the estimates of the ultimate costs to settle claims; and
» fluctuations in the market value of our investment portfolio.

While our mission and its key ingredients are simply stated, execution of that mission is fraught with many
challenges. We believe the Group has managed these challenges well in this transitional year by staying
focused on the following key value drivers:

¢ exposure management/reduction;

* reduction of volatility in our insurance contract liabilities;
s operating performance; and

capital management.

Management of Exposures and Volatility

In early 2006, we undertook an aggressive initiative to reduce exposure to new claims through a
combination of unearned premium cut-off transactions, termination of agency agreemeris and non-renewal
of insurance contracts. The effect of this activity is reflected in the significant reduction in premium income
and resultant de-leveraging of our capital and surplus. While some may argue that unearned premium cut-
offs result in lost margin, our emphasis is on releasing capital. By reducing our exposure to claims arising
on tfail or unearned premium, we immediately impact potential volatility on future resuts, which serves to
reduce the amount of capital required to support the business in the future. We believe the trade-off of
potential lost margin in the premium for the net present value of capital released is a sensible one for a
run-off company, particularly given our key cbjectives.

With respect to reducing volatility in insurance contract liabilities, in 2006 we undertook a number of
initiatives targeted at increasing the predictability of loss estimates. Those initiatives included an aggressive
commutation strategy with respect to our reinsurance claims outstanding as well as some proactive closing
strategies targeted at our direct insurance claims outstanding.

During 2006, we completed a number of commutation transactions on terms that made =conomic sense for
the Group, which at the same time we believe significantly reduced volatility in our provision for claims
outstanding.

In our direct insurance claim portfolio, we closed significantly more cases than expected and on economic
terms that on a portfolio basis were quite encouraging relative to their 31 December 2005 carrying value. At
31 December 2006, our total gross claims outstanding were $1,869.2 million compared to $2,428.9 million
at 31 December 2005, a reduction of $559.7 million, which in terms of our capitat management objectives
compares well against near constant net assets. The net result of all this activity is an averal reduction of
$931.0 miltion in insurance contract liabilities, representing a substantial de-leveraging of our capital base.

Operating Performance

2006 was a transition year for the Group; we faced the challenge of aligning our mariagement and staff
resources with the objectives and needs of a pure run-off enterprise. At 31 December 2005, our total
headcount was 284. We concluded the year with a headcount of 137 fully 42 below our plan expectations.
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However, the difference in pure headcount is not an accurate reflection of the effort involved in
repositioning the Group for run-off. In order to achieve our objectives we needed to ensure we had the
proper combination of talent and experience to enable us to pursue our various key strategies. We have
been able to align our management and staff talent well with our run-off objectives and are pleased to have
retained all of the skill and experience we believe necessary to get the job done. In 2007, we will continue
to adjust management, staff levels and talent as the needs of the Group change and as we move through
the run-off process.

Our before finance costs operating profit of $17.1 million, compared to a loss of $132.2 million at 31
December 2005, indicates we made significant progress in 2008, while our after tax loss of $0.8 million (net
of finance costs), compared to a loss of $178.9 million at 31 December 2005, suggests we came very close
to achieving our goal of operating the run-off with a view to preserving shareholder capital even in this first
year of transition. While we are disappointed not to have produced a result that contributes to an increase
in capital, we feel the Group performed well through this transition year to achieve the reported operating
result.

Investment income of $94.8 million, compared to $89.1 million at 31 December 2005, reflects the impact of
recent moves in interest rates and the effect of our initiative geared at shortening the duration of our bond
portfolio in order to more accurately reflect the liquidity needs of a run-off while at the same time taking
advantage of current yield curve dynamics. We continue to hold only very high-grade assets, which is
consistent with our desire to reduce risk and thereby de-leverage our capital base.

in 2007, we will continue to focus on expense management as well as maintain continued diligence with
respect to ensuring the Group is seftling only those insurance and reinsurance obligations it is properly
obligated to settle.

Capital Management

As previously stated, our focus on capital management has been on preserving, if possible growing and
ultimately releasing capital to shareholders. As a result of our efforts to de-leverage our capital, and with
the support of regulators in two jurisdictions, the Company has received distributions from two operating
subsidiaries. We view this support from regulators as further evidence that the run-off strategy is working.
However, before we are able to distribute capital to shareholders we must first address the significant
obligations the Group has to its banks and holders of its hybrid capital.

Throughout the year, the Group has met all of the terms of its bank and hybrid capital obligations. At 31
December 2006, the Company has approximately $131 mitlion in liquid assets available to service bank
obligations. We are currently exploring a number of options with respect to retirement and/or renegotiation
of the Group's bank debt and loans.

Outlook

2006 has been a challenging year for the Group as we have continued the transition to focusing the
Group’s efforts on the orderly run-off of the balance sheet. The Group suffered a very small operating loss
in this challenging year of transition and, while a net operating loss of any size is always disappointing Kirk
Lusk and | are very pleased with the substantial progress we have made in terms of our overall objectives
of preserving and de-leveraging our capital base.

We are also thankful to our staff who have shown initiative and commitment in terms of not only adjusting to
the new reality of run-off, but also in performing very well in dealing with the many new challenges they
faced through what were initially difficutt circumstances. Their hard work, coliaboration and commitment
have made a major contribution toward what Kirk Lusk and | feel is an improved outlook for the Group's
run-off performance. Finally, we would like to thank the Board of Directors for their support and
contributions through 2006.

Mark Cloutier
Chief Executive Officer
3 April 2007
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$’million $’ million
Gross premiums written (74.9) 997.5
Revenue
Premium revenue 303.3 1,347.8
Premium ceded to reinsurers (87.4) (261.1)
Net insurance premium revenue 2159 1,086.7
Fee income 3.2 3.0
Investment income 94.8 891
Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets (2.5) 0.7
Net realised gains on sale of disposal group 4.3 -
Net realised (losses)/gains on sale of renewal rights {5.0) 61.1
Total revenue 310.7 1,240.6
Expenses
Insurance claims and loss adjustment 173.4 1,146.6
expenses
Insurance claims and loss at_ijustment (16.7) (227.4)
expenses recovered from reinsurers
Net insurance claims 156.7 919.2
Acquisition cosls 69.2 3358
Other operating expenses 66.6 95.4
Restructuring costs 1.1 22.4
Total expenses 293.6 1,372.8
Results of operating activities 171 (132.2)
Finance costs (24.4) (19.9)
Loss before income tax {7.3) (152.1)
income tax credit/(expense) 6.5 (26.8)
Loss for the year' (0.8) (178.9)

1

These results have been prepared on a going concem basis. The Directors consider this to be the approoriate basis as set forth in

Note 2 of the Audited Financial Statements. The Auditors have issued an unqualified opinion in their audit report including an

emphasis of matter paragraph regarding going concerm,

Performance indicators and comparison to prior years

The Group ceased underwriting new and renewal business and was placed into run-off in the fourth quarter
of 2005. The Group's business has therefore changed significantly and as a result certain performance
comparisons with prior years may become less meaningful. In this report, the Group has madified some of
the performance indicators to make them relevant fo the business in its current state. Going forward, the
relevance of period-to-period comparisons included in Group reporting will be considered in fight of the
Group’s run-off strategy with the cbjective of making only meaningful and useful compzrisons.




Reserves and claims

At 31 December 2006 the total insurance contracts balance comprising gross claims outstanding less
discount on claims outstanding, claims handling provisions and provision for unearned premiums was
$1,941.5 million, a decrease of 32.4% from 31 December 2005 ($2,872.5 miliicn). The claims outstanding,
net of reinsurance at 31 December 2006 was $1,006.8 million. This is a decrease of 29.6% compared with

31 December 2005 ($1,429.4 million).

The balances are analysed below:

- As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'million $'million
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,957.3 2,531.9
Discount {105.9) {133.4)
1,851.4 2,398.5
Claims handling provisions 17.8 30.4
Total gross claims outstanding 1,869.2 2,428.9
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts 72.3 443.6
Total insurance contracts 1,941.5 28725
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 299.6 343.3
Discount (7.7) (11.3)
Net aggregate excess reinsurance 2919 332.0
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 573.2 673.0
Discount (2.7) {5.5)
Net other reinsurance 570.5 £667.5
Total reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 872.8 1,016.3
Discount (10.4) (16.8)
Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding 862.4 999.5
Provision for unearned premiums on reinsurance contracts 1.0 58.1
Total reinsurance contracts 863.4 1,057.6
Undiscounted claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,102.3 1,546.0
Discount {95.5) {116.6)
Claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,006.8 1,429.4
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Reserves and claims (continued)

The following table presents the Group's booked gross claims outstanding before claims handling
provisions and before discount as at 31 December 2006 by class of business.

General Motor Workers’ Professional Propeity MAT! Total
$'million liability comp.
1999 and prior 102.3 47.8 202 1.0 343 962 301.8
2000 29.0 12.6 12.6 19.8 76 246 106.2
2001 31.0 9.8 17.1 24.0 41 12.3 98.3
2002 32.0 17.8 10.8 38.6 7.7 55 1124
2003 39.1 322 6.3 31.3 9.0 6.5 124.4
2004 426 50.4 11.9 37.3 233 0.3 165.8
2005 17.7 66.3 4.4 23.7 9€.0 0.8 208.9
Total reinsurance reserves 293.7 2369 83.3 175.7 182.0 1462 1,1178
Insurance reserves 242.2 81.7 1924 314 21.8 0.0 569.5
Total non-life reserves 5359 3186 275.7 2071 203.8 146.2 1,687.3
Life structured settlements 246.2
Life reinsurance 238
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,957.3

1 Marine, Aviation and Transport

The following table analyses Alea's gross claims outstanding between incurred but not reported (*IBNR")
and case reserves as at 31 December 2006. The insurance and reinsurance splits are in line with the
Group's typical business tail and the relative maturity of the respective books.

Percentage Insurance Reinsurance Total
Case reserves 43% 55% 52%
IBNR 57% 45% 48%
Total 100% 100% 100%

Favourable development

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 the Group experienced an improvement in the
reserves before discount and net of commutations and reinsurance of $16.9 mllion (2005: adverse
reserves development before discount of $129.2 million, net of commutations ard reinsurance). This
includes $12.0 million favourable development in respect of catastrophe losses.

After discount the favourable reserves development in 2006 was $5.7 million, net of reinsurance
commutations (2005: adverse reserves development of $123.1 million, net of reinsurance, commutations
and discount).

Loss reserve discount

As permitted by IFRS 4, categories of claims provisions where the expected average interval between the
date of settlement and the balance sheet date is in excess of four years may be discounted at a rate which
does not exceed that expected to be earned by assets covering the provisions. As at 31 December 2006
28% (31 December 2005: 25%) of the Group's gross reserves were discounted at a rate of 4.5%.

As at 31 December 2006 the Group's total net discount was $95.5 million (31 December 2005: $116.7
million). This is expected to reduce towards zero over the duration of the normal course of payout of the
reserves. The unwinding of the discount will be charged to insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses
in the income statement as the remaining expected duration drops below the UK GAAP qualified levet of
four years as permitted by IFRS 4.
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Income statement

Gross premiums written and net insurance premium revenue

Gross premiums written in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 were negative $74.9 million (2005:
$997.5 million) reflecting the cancellation of policies written in prior periods. Net insurance premium revenue
reduced by 80.1% to $215.9 million in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 (2005: $1,086.7
million). This is primarily due to the Group's decision to cease writing new and renewal business resulting in
a reduction in premium.

Premiums written generally take three years to earn through the income statement. These patterns differ by
business class and operational unit. Overall, they approximate 40% in the first, 55% in the second and 5%
in the third year. As at 31 December 2006 the Group had net unearned premiums of $71.3 million (2005:
$385.5 million). The Group anticipates that no significant insurance premium revenue will be recognised in
2008 as the majority of unearned premium will have been released and recognised as revenue by 31
December 2007.

The Group has assessed its 31 December 2006 deferred acquisition cost asset (*DAC”) of $3.5 million
{2005: $107.0 million) as fully recoverable and as a result has not recorded any DAC write-off in its twelve
months to 31 December 2008 income statement.

Fee income

Fee income in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 was $3.2 million compared with $3.0 million
recorded in the same period in 2005. Fee income represents income arising on structured reinsurance and
insurance contracts without significant transfer of insurance risk. These contracts are accounted for on a
deposit accounting basis. Additionally, fee income includes $1.0 million received as a result of a service
arrangement between Alea North America Insurance Company and its former subsidiary Alea North
America Specialty Insurance Company (*ANASIC™) in connection with the sale of ANASIC to a member
company of Praetorian Financial Group, Inc. on 29 September 2006.

Investment income and realised gains and losses

Investment income in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 was $94.8 miltion, 6.4% ($5.7 million)
higher than the $89.1 million recorded in the twelve months ended 31 December 2005. The growth
recorded reflects 4.3% investment income in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 on average
invested assets of $2,228 million compared with 3.8% investment income in the twelve months ended 31
December 2005 on average invested assets of $2,375 million.

Net realised losses on financial assets were $2.5 million in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006
compared with $0.7 million realised gains in the twelve months ended 31 December 2005.

Net realised gains on sale of disposal group

As previously announced, Alea sold Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company, its US based
excess and surplus lines company, to a member company of Praetorian. Praetorian purchased all of Alea’s
shares in ANASIC in exchange for a cash payment of $4.0 million plus the statutory policyholders’ surplus
of ANASIC as of the closing date. Total consideration was $34.7 million and the transaction completed 29
September 2006. The Group recognised in its IFRS accounts a net realised gain on the sale of $4.3 million.
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Net realised {losses)/gains on sale of renewal rights

The Group completed three renewal rights transactions in the fourth quarter ¢f 2005. These were
accounted for as net realised gains on sale of renewal rights of $61.1 million, which 'was recognised in the
year ended 31 December 2005, and represented the Directors’ valuation at fair value: of the business sold.
In determining the fair market value of renewal rights sales, the Board considered thi: prior production and
growth of the businesses sold, external projections and a recent assessment of the businesses sold. The
fair market value of the renewal rights is regularly evaluated by the Board based on available data.

A charge of $5.0 million has been recognised in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 reflecting a
necessary change to the fair value which was based on the latest financial data available. These amounts
reflect the discounted estimated future cash flows arising from specified percentages of applicable
commissionable premiums written over the applicable period in accordance with ihe terms of the sale
contracts.

The table below summarises each transaction:

Transaction Completion date Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$’million $'million

Londen/Canopius 5 Dec 2005 (0.8) 8.0
AAR/AmTrust 14 Dec 2005 (5.2) 47.0
Europe/SCOR 19 Dec 2005 1.0 6.1
Total {5.0) 61.1

To date the Group considers that the accruals above are reasonable and has received in cash $20.9 million
of the estimated total of $56.1 million. The outstanding balance consists of $31.5 million due from AmTrust
and $3.7 million due from Canopius.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 the Group incurred net insurance claims and loss
adjustment expenses of $156.7 million (2005: $919.3 million).

The claims outstanding net of reinsurance at 31 December 2006 were $1,006.8 million {(at 31 December
2005: $1,429.4 million), which equates to a decrease of $422.6 million in the twelve month period.

Acquisition costs

Acquisiticn costs are costs that are directly associated with the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance
contracts including brokerage, commissions, underwriting expenses and other acquisition costs. They are
deferred and amortised over the period of contract, consistent with the earning of premium.

Given that the Group is no longer accepting new insurance risks, and is releasing its unearned premium
reserves as the risk associated with those premium receipts is extinguished, acquisition costs are expected
to become insignificant.

In the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 total acquisition costs were $69.2 million (2005: $335.8
million).
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Other operating expenses

The Group plans to reduce other operating expenses so that in any given period they are less than total
investment income in that period net of finance costs. To the extent that investment income net of discount
released does not offset other operating expenses, the Group will establish a run-off provision.

in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 other operating expenses were $68.6 million. This
compares with other operating expenses in the twelve months ended 31 December 2005 of $95.4 million
which were stated net of a $49.9 million reclassification from other operating expenses to acquisition costs.
This accounting treatment was performed to comply with IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ and
represents premium related expenses. As the Group is now in run-off, the equivalent reclassification is no
longer required.

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 were $1.1 million (2005: $22.4 million).

Staff headcount at 31 December 2006 stood at 137 (31 December 2005: 284) and the Group anticipates
that this will reduce as reserves and invested assets decline.

Inciuded are redundancy costs incurred of $3.6 million for severance payments made to employees who
were not part of the original restructuring plan as disclosed at 31 December 2005.

Restructuring costs also include a credit of $2.5 million which results from Alea North America's sublease of
its empty offices in Wilton and a resulting reversal of part of the previously recognised provision for onerous
contracts.

Results of operating activities

In the twelve months ended 31 December 2006, results of operating activities were a profit of $17.1 million
compared with a loss of $132.2 million in the twelve months ended 31 December 2005 reflecting a
successful transition into run-off.

Finance costs

Finance costs include investment expenses, foreign exchange movements and debt interest. In the twelve
months ended 31 December 2006 total finance costs were $24.4 million, compared with $19.9 million
recorded in the same period in 2005. The majority of this increase results from a rise in interest rates. As is
detailed in the section on Financing Facilities, interest is charged at LIBOR plus 285 basis points on the
trust preferred facility and at LIBOR plus 120 basis points on the three-year bank facility.

Loss before income tax

Loss before income tax was $7.3 mitlion in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 compared with a
loss of $152.1 million in the twelve months ended 31 December 2005. This reduction reflects the change in
the results of operating activities noted above.

11
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Income tax expense

The income tax credit in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 was $6.5 million, compared with a
charge of $26.8 million in the twelve months ended 31 December 2005.

The impact of the income tax credit on the income statement is summarised as follow:s:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'million $'million

Current tax credit:
UK corporation tax 0.3 -
Foreign tax (4.9) {0.2)
Total current period (4.6) {0.2)
Deferred tax (credit)/charge; (1.9) 27.0
Total income tax (6.5) 26.8

{credit)/expense

In the year ended 31 December 2006 the Group’s North American entities made a pre tax loss of $24.6
million. As a result of these allowable tax losses, the Group has reversed a previously recognised deferred
tax liability of $1.9 million and has also recognised a current tax recoverable of $5.6 million,

In the year ended 31 December 2005 the Group wrote off the majority of its deferred tax assets to reflect
uncertainty over future profitability. The Group's Swiss, US and UK enfities have significant trading losses
carried forward in respect of which no deferred tax assets have been recognised.

Loss on ordinary activities after income tax

Loss on ordinary activities after income tax in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 was $0.8 million
{31 December 2005: loss of $178.9 million).

Loss per share

Basic and fully diluted loss per share for the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 was $0.00 per share
(2005: loss per share: $1.03).

Dividend
The Company will not be paying a dividend for the 2006 financial year.
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Balance sheet

Total assets

Total assets as at 31 December 2006 decreased by 24.8% to $3,145.7 million from $4,184.8 million at 31
December 2005.

Net assets

Net assets (shareholders’ funds attributable to equity interests) at 31 December 2006 were $484.1 million
(31 December 2005: $490.4 million). Net assets per share were $2.79 (31 December 2005: $2.82). At the
31 December 2006 net assets per share were £1.42 (exchange rate of $1.97= £1) compared with 31
December 2005 of £1.43 when translated at the 31 December 2006 exchange rate or £1.63 per share
when translated at the 31 December 2005 exchange rate ($1.73 = £1).

Net assets have remained relatively stable compared with the position at 31 December 2005 ($490.4
million) after taking into consideration the impact of interest rate movements on the investment portfolio
described below. -

Reinsurance recoverables

Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding was $862.4 million at 31 December 2006 (2005: $999.5
million).

Invested assets

The Group's investment strategy emphasises a high quality diversified portfolio of liquid investment grade
fixed income securities as a method of preserving capital. The investment portfolio does not currently
consist of equity or real estate investments, but the Group may, in the future, invest in other asset classes
on a modest basis as part of a continuing conservative investment strategy.

At 31 December 2006 the value of available for sale investments was $1,664.5 million, compared with
$2,205.7 million at 31 December 2005.

Of total invested assets $1,732.7 million {2005: $2,149.0 million) is managed by third-party fund managers
with the asset mix shown below. The remaining invested assets of $89.1 million include predominantly
mutual funds invested in fixed income securities.

Asset class 31 December 2006 31 December 2005
US government 21% 25%
US mortgage 16% 24%
EU and Switzerland government and corporate 14% 16%
US corporate 1% 11%
Asset backed securities 4% 6%
US municipalities 1% 3%
Canadian government and provinces 2% 2%
Cash and other 31% 13%
Total 100% 100%

At 31 December 2006 the Group’s investment portfolic had an average duration of 1.7 years (2005: 2.9
years). The Group has shortened the average duration of the portfolio to provide liquidity anticipated to be
required to support the Group's run-off strategy.

13
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Invested assets (continued)

In the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 the Group achieved a total gross refurn on the investment
portfolio of 3.6% (2005: 2.7%). The investment return comprised 4.3% investment income (2005: 3.8%}).
0.1% realised loss {2005: gain of 0.0%) and 0.6% unrealised loss {2005; loss of 1.1%) on average invested
assets of $2,228.3 million (2005; $2,374.6 million).

At 31 December 2006 all of the Group's fixed income portfolio was rated A or better nd 94% was rated AA
or better by either Standard & Poor's or Moody's. The portfolio had a weighted average rating of AAA
based on ratings assigned by Standard & Poor's or Moody's. Other than with respecl to US, Canadian and
European Union government and agency securities, the Group's investment guidelines limit its aggregate
exposure to any single issuer to 5% of its portfolio. All securities must be rated A or better at the time of
purchase and the weighted average rating requirement of the Group's portfolio is AAA. There were no
investment write-offs in either 2005 or 2006,

There are pledges over certain investments for the issuance of letters of credit in the normal course of
business. As at 31 December 2006 the pledges covered assets of $343.6 million {2005: $384.9 millicn). In
addition $131.7 million (2005: $102.5 million) is held as statutory deposits for local regulators and a further
$611.6 million (2005: $775.9 million) is held in trust for the benefit of policy holders iricluding $197.5 million
{2005: $301.5 million) that Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has placed in trust on behalf of Alea North America
Insurance Company.

As at 31 December 2006 the Group held Société d'Investissement & Capital Variatle (“SICAV”) of $55.5
million (2005: $51.4 million) pledged for the benefit of French and Belgian cedants. These SICAVs are
mutual funds invested in European fixed income securities with average credit quality of AAA and duration
of approximately six years.

Capital management

Financing facilities

The Group raised $100 million of hybrid capital in December 2004 and a further $20 miillion in early January
2005. This capital is in the form of 30-year hybrid trust preferred securities priced at _IBOR plus 285 basis
points.

At 31 December 2006 the Group had $150 million outstanding under its term loan facility and $50 million
outstanding under its revolver facility. Interest is charged at LIBOR plus 120 basis pcints on the three-year
bank facilities. The bank facilities are due in September 2007.

The Group's bank facilities are subject to covenants including tangible minimum net equity, debt-to-
capitalisation ratio limitations, limitations on granting of liens, limitations on payments of dividends,
limitations on other disposition of assets, limitations on increased indebtedness and limitations on
distribution of assets.

Liquidity and cashflow

Cash flows from operating activities primarily consist of premiums collected, investment income and
collected reinsurance recoverable balances, less paid claims, retrocession payments, operating expenses
and tax payments. Net cash outflow from operating activities after income tax paid for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2006 was $585.0 million (2005: $111.2 million net cash inflow). The operating cash
outflow reflects the transition into run-off and the reduction in premium received.

The net increase in cash was $42.4 million (decrease for twelve months ended 31 December 2005 of $74.4
million). This is after net cash received from investing activities of $649.3 million (2005: net cash used of
$175.3 million) and net cash used in financing activities of $21.9 million (2005: net zash outflow of $10.2
million). As a result the Group's cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2006 was $157.2 million (2005:
$117.0 million).
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intra-Group arrangements

The Group manages a number of different intra-group arrangements designed to ensure that each local
balance sheet retains risk commensurate with its capital base. The principal means of achieving this is by
arranging capacity through internal quota share reinsurances (‘quota shares') primarily with Alea Bermuda.
For 2002 to 2006 underwriting years the Group has put in place a 70% quota share to Alea Bermuda of
Alea North America's insurance and reinsurance business. For 2001 to 2005 underwriting years there was
a 35% quota share arrangement from Alea London to Alea Europe in place which was commuted in the
third quarter of 2006. There is a 50% quota share of certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from
Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda. For 2002 to 2005 financial years, there was an intra-group aggregate
excess of loss contract from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda. Given the change in circumstances, the Group
is evaluating options to simplify its capital structure and balance sheet and is therefare considering
commutations of the remaining quota shares. Such transactions would be subject to regutatory approval in
each jurisdiction affected.

Credit ratings

On 8 September 2005 Standard and Poor's {("S&P") lowered its long-term counterparty credit and insurer
financial strength ratings on the Group to BBB+ from A-. The downgrade followed the publication of the
Group's interim results on 31 August 2005 which did not meet S&P's expectations. On 5 December 2005,
S&P lowered its long-term counterparty credit and insurer financial strength ratings on the Group to BBB
from BBB+. The downgrade followed the placement of Alea London into run-off following the sale of policy
renewal rights to Canopius announced on the same day. On 14 February 2006 S&P affirmed the Group’s
credit rating at BBB (stable outlook). At the same time the ratings were withdrawn at management's
request.

On 23 September 2005 A.M. Best lowered the Group's financial strength rating from A- to B++ due to
concerns over the Group’s risk adjusted capitalisation. On 30 January 2006 A.M. Best downgraded the
Group's financial strength rating to B from B++ and the issuer credit rating to BB from BBB due to the
Group's entry into run-off and expected pcor operational performance. At the same time the ratings were
withdrawn at management’s request.

Kirk H Lusk
Group Chief Financial Officer
3 April 2007
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John Reeve (62) is Non-Executive Chairman. Mr. Reeve was Executive Chairman ¢f Willis Group Limited
from November 1995 untit October 2000. Prior to this, Mr. Reeve was Group Managing Director of Sun Life
Corporation PLC and Sun Life Assurance Society PLC from 1989 to 1995, a member of the board of the
Association of British Insurers from 1993 to 1995 and a member of the board of the International Insurance
Saociety Inc. from 1993 to 2001. A chartered accountant, Mr. Reeve is Chairman of Tample Bar Investment
Trust PLC and is currently a Director of PEC Concerts Ltd., Lamarsh Services Ltd., Autologous Transfusion
Ltd. and East London Business Alliance Charity and has held a variety of othe: executive and non-
executive directorships in financial, industrial and charitable organisations.

Mark Cloutier (51) is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and was appointed as an executive member
of the Board of Directors on 1 September 2006. Mark Cloutier has over 30 years' experience within the
reinsurance and run-off industry, and was most recently President and CEO, OP Re.

Timothy C Faries (40) is a Non-Executive Director and a partner and the Insurance Team Practice Leader
at Appleby Hunter Bailhache, Barristers & Attorneys, in Bermuda. He has been a partner at Appleby since
2000 and was an associate there from 1893 to 1999.

James R Fisher (51) is a Non-Executive Director and the managing member and majority owner of Fisher
Capital Corp. LLC. From 1986 through March 1997, Mr. Fisher was a senior exec.tive at American Re
Corporation and served most recently as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of American Re-
Insurance Company (‘American Re’) and American Re Corporation, President of American Re Financial
Products, and President and Chief Executive Officer of American Re Asset Management. Mr. Fisher is also
Non-Executive Chairman of Bristol West Holdings, Inc. Mr. Fisher also serves as Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company. He is also a member of the Standing Committee of the Board of Trustees at
Lafayette College.

Todd A Fisher (41) is a Non-Executive Director and has been an executive of various KKR related entities
since June 1993. Mr. Fisher was an associate at Goldman Sachs & Co. from July 1992 to June 1893, He is
also a member of the board of directors of Bristol West Holdings, Inc., Duales System Deutschland AG,
Rockwood Specialties, Inc. and Maxeda.

Perry Golkin (53) is a Non-Executive Director and has been an executive of various KKR related entities
since March 1986. He is also a member of the board of directors of Bristol West Hold ngs, Inc., PRIMEDIA,
Inc., Willis Group Holdings Limited and Rockwood Specialties, Inc.

R Glenn Hilliard (64) is a Non-Executive Director. Mr. Hilliard is currently Chairmar and Chief Executive
Officer of Hilliard Group, LLC, and Non-Executive Chairman for Conseco, Inc., and effective 1 January
2005, Mr. Hilliard was appointed as an independent trustee of Columbia Nations Separate Account Trust.
He most recently served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of ING Americas until April 2003. Prior to
this, Mr. Hilliard was Chief Executive Officer from 1984 to 1989 and Chairman of the board of directors in
1989 of Liberty Life Insurance Company following which he was President and Chief Executive Officer of
Security Life of Denver Insurance Company (an ING Company) from 1989 to 1993. In January of 1993, he
was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of ING America Life Corporation following which he
held a succession of executive and non-executive offices in companies in the ING group. Mr. Hilliard is a
member of the American and South Carolina Bar Associations, and the Society of International Business
Fellows.

Kirk H Lusk (46) is the Chief Financial and Chief Operating Officer of the Group and was appointed as an
executive member of the Board of Directors on 1 September 2006. Mr. Lusk bzgan his career with
Travelers in 1983. From 1983 to 1998, Mr. Lusk held positions of increasing leadership and responsibility,
and ultimately served as Regional Controller for Travelers out of their Denver, Colorado office. Mr. Lusk
then held several leadership positions at General Electric, most recently at General Electric's Employers
Reinsurance Corporation (GE ERC). He joined Alea in 2004 as Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning
and Corporate Deveiopment, and was promoted to his current position in February 2305. Mr. Lusk has 24
years of industry experience.

Scott C Nuttall (34) is a Non-Executive Director and has been an executive of various KKR entities since
November 1996. Mr. Nuttall was with The Blackstone Group from January 1995 to November 1996. He is
also on the board of directors of Masonite International Corporation, Capmark Financial Group, Inc. and
KKR Financial Corp.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consclidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2006.

Activities

The principal activities of the Group currently comprise the run-off of an existing portfolio of specialty
insurance and reinsurance business. This business was acquired in prior years through three principal
operating segments — Alea London, Alea Europe and Alea North America. The Group entered into run-off
of all segments effective in 2005 following downgrade actions by the Group's rating agencies.

Financial review

A review of developments during 2006 including information relating to important events affecting the
Group since 31 December 2006, certain risks and uncertainties affecting the Group and its prospects for
the future appears in the Financial Review on pages 6 to 15.

information relating to the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group is in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern

The Group has prepared the 2006 financial statements on the going concern basis. See page 6 in the
Financial Review and Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Results for the year
The results for the year are set out on page 40.

Dividends

The Company is not paying a dividend for the 2006 financial year (2005: $Nil). Further, there can be no
certainty as to either the value or timing of future payments to the Company's shareholders .

Directors
The Directors that served during the year are as follows:

John Reeve (Chairman) '

Mark L Ricciardelli (former Group Chief Executive Officer) 2
Mark Cloutier {Group Chief Executive Ofﬁcer)3
Timothy C Faries*

James R Fisher®

Todd A Fisher®

Perry Golkin’

R Glenn Hilliard®

Edward B Jobe®

Kirk H Lusk (Group Chief Financial Officer)™
Scott C Nuttall"
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Directors {(continued)

Notes

1. Appointed as independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Board effective 19 November 2003. Re-elected on 29 June
2006, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Appointed as an Executive Director on 24 June 2004. Re-elected on 2 June 2005, resigned 31 August 2006,

Appointed as an Executive Director effective 1 September 2006.

Appointed as an independent Non-Executive Director effective 7 December 2001. Last re-elected on 2 June 2005.

Member of the Nomination Committee.

5. Effective 19 November 2003 reappointed as a Non-Executive Director. Chairman of the Audit Committee.

6. Effective 19 November 2003 reappoinied as a Non-Executive Director. Member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

7. Effective 19 November 2003 reappointed as a Non-Executive Director. Member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

8. Appointed as senior independent Non-Executive Director effective 19 Novernber 2003. Last re-edected on 29 June 2006.
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit Committee.

9. Appointed as an independent Non-Executive Director effective 17 September 2004, Last re-elected on 2 June 2005.
Member of the Audit Committee. Resigned effective 20 April 2006.

10. Appointed as an Executive Director on 1 September 2006.

11. Effective 19 November 2003 reappointed as a Non-Executive Director. Member of the Audit Committee.

o

Directors’ interests

The Directors’ beneficial interests in common shares of the Company as at 31 December 2006 were as
follows:

Name of Director Number of common shares
Mark Cloutier -
Timothy C Faries -
James R Fisher ' 2,718,120
Todd A Fisher ? 70,740,080
Perry Golkin 2 70,740,080
R Glenn Hilliard 100,000
Kirk H Lusk 23,005
Scott C Nuttall 2 70,740,080
John Reeve 100,000

There have been no changes in these interests since 31 December 20086.

' James R Fisher and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC are both limited partners of KKR Partners (International), Limited
Partnership. James R Fisher is the majority shareholder and managing member of Fisher Capital Corp. LLC. KKR
Partners (International), Limited Partnership is a registered shareholder in the Company and, as a result of the
relationships set out above, James R Fisher is interested in the 2,568,520 common shares owned by KKR Partners
(International}, Limited Partnership or in some of such common shares. Additionally, Fisher Capital Corp. LLC is the
registered holder of 149,600 common shares and James R Fisher's interest set out above incl.des his interest in these
common shares.

?  Perry Golkin, Todd A Fisher and Scott C Nuttall are directors and Perry Golkin and Todd A Fisher are also shareholders
of KKR 1996 Overseas, Limited. Perry Golkin, Todd A Fisher and Scott C Nuttall are limited partners of KKR Associates Ii
(1996), Limited Partnership and limited partners in KKR Partners {International), Limited Partnership. KKR 1996
Overseas, Limited is the general partner of KKR Associates Il (1996), Lirnited Partnership and of KKR Pariners
(International), Limited Partnership. KKR Associates [ (1996), Limited Partnership is the general pantner of KKR 1996
Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership. KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership and KKR Partners {International),
Limited Partnership are registered holders of 68,171,560 and 2,568,520 common shares, respectively, and as a result of
the relationships set out above these Directors are interested in the common shares owned by ihese entities or in some
of such common shares.

This table above does not include share options or restricted stock units held by Directors, details of which
are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report.
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Re-election of Directors

The Company is proposing the reappointment of John Reeve and Timothy C Faries as Directors, each of
whom is retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. Messrs. Reeve and Faries are
being recommended for re-election due to their recognised expertise in the (re)insurance industry and the
quality of their service to the Company. Each of their Director's appointment letters is renewable on 26
June 2007 for an additional three year term, subject to the provisions of the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company is also proposing the reappointment of Mark Cloutier and Kirk H. Lusk as Directors, each of
whom is retiring at the first Annual General Meeting following their appointments in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws. Mr. Cloutier is an Executive Director and the Group Chief Executive Officer and Mr.
Lusk is an Executive Director and Group Chief Financial Officer and Group Chief Operating Officer.

The Directors’ service contracts including Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are available for
inspection at Alea London Limited, The London Underwriting Centre, 53 Minster Court , London EC3R 7DD
during normal business hours on any day (Saturday, Sunday and public holidays excepted) and at the
place of the Annual General Meeting 15 minutes prior to and throughout the meeting.

Biographical and other details of these Directors are set out on page 16 of this report.

Employees

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them
informed of, and to solicit their opinions on, matters affecting them as employees and various factors
affecting the performance of the Group. These objectives are achieved through various means, including
global and local intranet sites providing daily news and other information about the Group and the
insurance sector.

Payments to creditors

The Group's current policy concerning the payment of suppliers, excluding amounts due in respect of the
transaction of insurance and reinsurance business, is to:

a) settle the terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction;

b) ensure that suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of the relevant terms in
contracts; and

¢} pay in accordance with its contractual and other legal liabilities.

Charitable and political contributions

During the year, charitable donations amounted to $Nil (2005: $23,077). Laws of various jurisdictions
impose prohibitions, limitations and/or restrictions on corporate political contributions and therefore no such
contributions may be made on behalf of the Company without approval of the Group General Counsel. No
such contributions were approved in 2006.

Purchase of own shares

Under contractual arrangements between the Company and certain Group employees, the Company has
the right to repurchase shares in the Company held by such an employee at the end of their employment.
No share purchases pursuant to these arrangements were made in 2006.

The Company is not required to obtain shareholder approval to authorise purchases of its own shares
under Bermudan law.
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Substantial shareholdings

The following persons, other than the Directors, had informed the Company of notifialile interests in 3% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws as at 31 March
2007. Henderson Global Investors Limited have advised the Company of interests in voting rights over
12,019,975 shares (6.9%) under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules as at 19 March 2007. No other
persons have advised the Company of interests in voting rights to the extent required 1o be disclosed under
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules as at 31 March 2007.

% of issued

Name Number of common shares share capital
KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership’ 68,171,560 39.2
The State of Wisconsin Investment Board 13,956,720 8.0
CalPERS/PCG Corporate Partners, LLC 6,978,360 4.0
Morgan Stanley Securities Limited 14,622,318 8.4

' KKR Partners {International), Limited Partnership is the registered holder of a further 2,568,520 common shares. Taken

together KKR and KKR Partners (International), Limited Partnership have an aggregate interast in 40.7% of the Company's
issued share capital.

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as audito's and a resoclution to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

George P Judd
Group Secretary
3 April 2007
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Combined Code

As a Bermuda limited liability holding company, Atea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd is subject to limited
requirements relating to corporate governance disclosures under the United Kingdom Financial Services
Authority’s Listing Rules (the ‘Listing Rules’). Nevertheless, the Directors place a degree of importance on
the Combined Code, and provide the following comments on corporate governance matters in addition to
their disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.

There are no requirements under Bermuda law comparable to the Combined Code applicable to Bermuda
limited liability holding companies.

Board operation

The authorities of the Board are set out clearly in the Company’s bye-laws and are further supplemented by
a formal prior review letter stating the items specifically reserved for decision by the Board or a duly
authorised committee thereof, Matters reserved for the Board include approval of the Company's strategy
and business plans, acquisitions and disposals, key appointments and other key husiness decisions.

Subject to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the bye-laws and to directions given by the shareholders in
general meeting, the business and affairs of the Company are managed by the Board, which may exercise
all of the powers of the Company, whether relating to the management of the business or not.

Directors are fully briefed in advance of Board and Committee meetings on all matters to be discussed and
at Board meetings receive regular reports on the Group’s financial position, key areas of the Group's
business operations and other material issues.

The Board has a procedure through which Directors are able to take independent legal and financial advice
in furtherance of their responsibilities. The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
Secretary.

The Board held four meetings in 2006 and members of the Board participated in discussions by conference
call from time to time. In their capacity as Directors, Perry Golkin, Scott C Nuttall and Todd A Fisher were
each excused from one meeting. Mr. Timothy C Faries was excused from two meetings.

On appointment, new Directors receive appropriate guidance on their duties and responsibilities.

Separate Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer

The posts of Chairman of the Board and Group Chief Executive Officer are held by different Directors,
namely, John Reeve and Mark Cloutier, respectively. Mr. Reeve is currently Chairman of Temple Bar
Investment Trust PLC, and a director of PEC Concerts Ltd, Lamarsh Services Ltd., Autologous
Transfusion Ltd. and East London Business Alliance Charity. The Board has determined that Mr. Reeve's
responsibilities do not detract from his commitment to the Group.

Board Committees

The Board has established Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees with formally delegated
duties and responsibilities with written terms of reference which are available on the Group's website
www.aleagroup.com. Minutes of all Board Committee meetings are formally recorded.

The Audit and Remuneration Committees each held three meetings in 2006. The Nomination Committee
did not meet in 2008. In their capacity as Committee members all Committee members attended all
meetings, other than John Reeve, who was excused from one Audit Committee meeting and Scott C
Nuttall, who was excused from one Audit Committee meeting.
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Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are James R Fisher, R Glenn Hilliard, Scoti C Nuttall and John
Reeve, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors. James R Fisher is Chairman of the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee will normally meet at least three times per year and senior management {including the
Group Chief Executive Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer) and external avditors attend for part
or all of each meeting. The auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee and its Chairman.
The Audit Committee considers all matters relating to financial controls and reporting, audits, the scope and
results of the audits, and the independence and objectivity of the auditors. Edward E Jobe resigned as a
Director and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 20 Agprit 2006.

The activities of the Audit Committee during 2006 included the foliowing: review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control; discussions and approval of the internal audit
activities and periodic assessments of progress against those activities, review of results of outsourced
internal audits and discussion and review of the independence of the Group's auditors and planning for
independent annual audit and interim review.

Nomination Committee

The members of the Nomination Committee are John Reeve, Timothy C Faries, Todd A Fisher and Perry
Golkin, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors. John Reeve is Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
Where votes of members of the Nomination Commitiee are evenly cast for and against, the relevant matter
will be referred to, and decided by, the Beard. The Nomination Committee meets as frequently as required
and is responsible, among other things, for regularly reviewing the size, structure and composition of the
Board and identifying and nominating new appointments to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are R Glenn Hilliard, Todd A Fisher, Pzrry Golkin and John
Reeve, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors. R Glenn Hilliard is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Chairman is the senior independent Board member and has a casting vote where votes of
members of that committee are evenly cast for and against. The Remuneration Commiittee normally meets
as frequently as required, and is responsible, among other things for making recommendations to the
Board on remuneration policy for Executive Directors, senior executives and the Chairman and within the
framework agreed with the Board determining the individual elements of the compensation of Executive
Directors and the Chairman and, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer, sentor management.

The Remuneration Committee is authorised to commission its own independent reviews of remuneration
policy to ensure that the policy reflects good practice and remains in line with market rates. In this
connection the Remuneration Committee commissioned Hewitt Associates LLC ("Hewitt”), an independent
consultant, to review the Group’s retention and incentive programs in light of the Group's self-managed run-
off strategy. As a result of that study, the Remuneration Committee recommended and the Board adopted
certain proposed combined retention and incentive arrangements for critical staff. Hewitt does not provide
any other services to the Group other than advice to the Remuneration Committee.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are provided in the Directors’ remuneration report.

Independence of Directors

Three independent Non-Executive Directors are currentty members of the Board, one of whom, John
Reeve, is the independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Board and ancther, R Glenn Hilliard, is the
senior independent Non-Executive Director. The Company has a total of nine Directors, consisting of two
Executive Directors and seven Non-Executive Directors., Of the seven Non-Executive Directors, James R
Fisher, Todd A Fisher, Perry Golkin and Scott C Nuttall are deemed by the Board not o be independent of
KKR due to their connections with, and interests in various KKR related entities, including Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co., LP, KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership and KKR Partners (International},
Limited Partnership. Timothy C Faries, R Glenn Hilliard and John Reeve are deemecl by the Board to be
independent. Edward B Jobe has resigned as Director and ceased to be a member of the Board on 20 April
2006.
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The Board does not believe that fees paid to Appleby Hunter Bailhache (‘AHB'} in connection with legal
services provided to the Group ($49,338 in 2006) compromise the independence of Timothy C Faries, a
partner in AHB, nor does the Board believe that John Reeve's position as a limited partner in KKR Partners
[l Limited Partnership compromises his independence.

Director appointments

The Board shall not number more than 11 Directors without the prior written approval of KKR 1996 Fund
(Overseas), Limited Partnership, or Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. This consent will terminate on
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., LP and KKR Partners (International), Limited Partnership (the ‘KKR
Affiliates’) or KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, when taken together, ceasing to hold
common shares representing at least 10% of the common shares from time to time issued. At each Annual
General Meeting, one third of the Directors who are subject to retirement by rotation, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less than, one third, shall retire from office
provided that if there are fewer than three Directors who are subject to retirement by rotation, one shall
retire from office. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election or reappointment. The provisions in the
bye-laws relating to the retirement of Directors by rotation do not apply to a KKR Director (defined below).
The quorum necessary for Board meetings is any two Directors of which at least one Director must be a
KKR Director.

Whilst the KKR Affiliates or KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, when taken together, hold
common shares representing: (a) at least 20% of the common shares from time to time issued, KKR shall
be entitled to appoint {and remove and reappoint) four Non-Executive Directors, or {b) 15% or more but
less than 20% of the common shares from time to time issued, KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited
Partnership shall be entitled to appoint (and remove and reappoint) three Non-Executive Directors, or (c)
10% or more but less than 15% of the common shares from time-to-time issued, KKR 1996 Fund
{Overseas), Limited Partnership shall be entitled to appoint (and remove and reappoint) two Non-Executive
Directors. Any Non-Executive Director appointed pursuant to these rights is referred to as a ‘KKR Director'.
Each of the Board and the Company by a resolution of the shareholders in general meeting may appoint a
person who is willing to act to be a Director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the Board, but the
total number of Directors may not exceed any maximum number fixed in accordance with the bye-laws.

A Director (other than a KKR Director) may be removed by a resolution of the shareholders at any general
meeting convened in accordance with the bye-taws, which require that the relevant Director has been
served with not less than 28 days’ notice of the resolution and has the right to be heard at the meeting on
the motion for removal.

For purposes of the next Annual General Meeting, John Reeve and Timothy C Faries shall retire by rotation
and are eligible for re-election. Messrs. Reeve and Faries are being recommended for re-election due to
their recognised expertise in the (re)insurance industry and the quality of their service to the Company.

Relations with shareholders

During 20086, the Group designated the Group Chief Financial Officer or in his absence, the Group Chief
Executive Officer as responsible for investor relations. The Group is committed to the principle of effective
communication with investors. The Group publishes results half-yearly and normally invites institutional
investors and analysts to presentations by the Group after the announcement of its interim and final results.
These presentations are made available on the Group'’s website at www.aleagroup.com.

All shareholders are invited to the Annual General Meeting where there is an opportunity to ask questions
of the Directors and express opinions. The Chairmen of each of the Board Committees are expected and
the other Directors are encouraged to be present at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders who are
unable to attend or to ask a question in person, are invited to contact the Group in writing, or via its website.
The Company provides for separate resolutions on issues in its Notice of Annual General Meeting and
allows shareholders the option of vote withheld on a poll. The Notice of Annual General Meeting is
despatched to shareholders at least 20 business days prior to the date of the meeting. Details of the voting
by shareholders at general meetings are available on request.

The website is regularly updated and used to communicate information about the Group that is of interest
to shareholders, and the public at large.
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Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of risk management and internal control and
for reviewing their effectiveness. The Group’s Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the framework of the Group’s systems of internal control and the last review took place
during 20086.

The main areas of this framework are set out as follows:

Run-off process

The Group's run-off strategy is focused on exiting all underwriting activities as soon as practicable and
conducting an orderly run-off of existing liabilities. In this connection, a centralised Groap function has been
created to oversee an orderly exit from all remaining underwriting activities.

in addition oversight of claims management for all operations has been centralised at the Group level and
dedicated teams have been established to progress commutations with reinsurance cliznts.

Controls and procedures are designed to ensure that the run-off can be managed such that policyholders
receive an acceptable or agreed payment in respect of valid claims in compliance wita all applicable rules
and regulaticns and excess capital can be returned to the Group's capital providers. The Group has
established comprehensive authorities, approvals processes and metrics designed o measure success
against these objectives.

Aggregation controls

The Group intends to utilise reinsurance to limit remaining exposures during the run-off period. The Group
internal actuaries working in conjunction with external actuarial consultants and reinsurance specialists in
London are responsible for evaluating and acquiring appropriate on-going protections for the Group.

Regulatory compliance

The Group intends to operate the run-off at all times to maintain appropriate regulalory compliance and
solvency in the multiple jurisdictions in which it operates. The Group General Counsel, working with
regulatory specialists, is responsible for regulatory compliance issues.

Financial management

As part of the run-off operations, the Chief Financial Officers of the local operations now report to the Group
Chief Financial Officer. The Group will continue to hold regular meetings of its senior financial personnel
worldwide to ensure that each Group operation is fully aware of the Group’s financial reporting regime and
financial control framework.

Risk management

The Group's risk management programme focuses on progress of run-off activities against the Group's run-
off plan.

The Group's risk management programme is integrated as part of strategic planning activities and provides
a process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. The risk
management programme has been designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements or loss arising. The risk management programme was designed and implemented with
regard to both the United Kingdom Turmbull and the United States Committee of Spons.oring Organisations
(COS0) guidance.
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Enterprise risk management function

The enterprise risk management process was designed so as to integrate with the strategic planning
process, as derived from the Group's run-off plans and objectives. Significant risks are linked to strategic
objectives articulated in the business plans to ensure plan cohesiveness.

Reports are provided periodically to the Board, its Audit Committee and senior management.

Internal audit

In lieu of a separate internal audit function, the Company periodically engages internal resources or third
party providers to perform independent audits and/or reviews. These audits and/or reviews are conducted
under the supervision of the senior financial management and results are provided directly to the Audit
Committee and the Group’s external auditors. The Audit Committee considers at least annually whether
there is a need for a separate internal audit function and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors
as to the need for such a function.

Management of financial risks

The Group's approach to the management of certain other financial risks is detailed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The details of the Directors’ responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements are set out in the
statement of Directors’ responsibilities on page 36.

Auditor independence

Each year the Audit Committee formally considers the performance of the external auditors prior to
recommending to the Board the proposal of a resolution to sharehclders at the Annual General Meeting
concerning the appointment and remuneration of auditors. One of the key items in this review is to ensure
that there are no matters that would compromise the independence of the auditors or affect the
performance of their statutory duties. Deloitte & Touche LLP similarly consider whether there are any
relationships between themselves and the Group that could have a bearing upon their independence and
confirm, in writing, to the Group their independence.

In a number of areas Deloitte & Touche LLP were engaged as advisors by management during the year.
The Board is satisfied that none of these engagements gave rise to problems with auditor independence or
other potential conflicts of interest. To reinforce the need to ensure independence, all requests at any level
of the organisation to engage outside advisors to provide financial and/or auditing services must be pre-
approved by the Group Chief Financial Officer. A full statement of the fees paid for audit and non-audit
services is provided in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Social, environmental and ethical matters

The Board values its dialogue with institutional shareholders and their representative bodies which, taken
together with the breadth of experience that the Board collectively holds, facilitates awareness of significant
social, environmental and ethical concerns that stakeholders may have about the Group.

Employee practice

The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities in all aspects of employment irrespective of sex,
race, colour, age, religion, sexual preference, marital status, national origin, disability, ancestry, political
opinion, or any other basis prohibited by the laws that govern its operations. Employment practices are
based on ability and performance.
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Health and safety

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining safe and healthy working conditions in accordance
with the relevant statutory requirements for all employees and in this connection th2 Group makes every
effort to comply with applicable occupational health and safety laws in all jurisdictions where the Group
operates, and to ensure that employees and other workers engaged in the businass of the Group are
aware of their own responsibilities with regard to health and safety at work.

Environmental

As a financial services company the Group believes it has a relatively low impact on the environment
through the operation of its business. Recycling initiatives are in place in its offices in Switzerland, the
United Kingdom and the United States.

Standards of business conduct

The Group has adopted a Code of Conduct that is communicated to all staff throughout the Group. The
Code of Conduct sets out values and standards of conduct staff are expected to follow to protect the
Group’s reputation and achieve its objectives. The Code is supperted by a range of policies, which
implement its requirements.

The Group operates a worldwide Employee Financial Complaint Reporting programme whereby staff may,
in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters.
The programme is administered by an independent third party and coordinated internally by the risk
management function. Procedures have been implemented such that all reports of improprieties are
appropriately reported to the Board through the Audit Committee and that sufficient investigation of any
allegation is conducted. To date there have been no reports under the programme.

Significant differences between the Company’s Corporate Governance practice:s and those set out
in the UK Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the “Code”)

As a Bermudan incorporated company listed on the London Stock Exchange the Company is not required
to comply with the Code, however in accordance with the Listing Rules it is required to identify significant
differences between its corporate governance practices and those set out in the Code. The Board
considers that the significant ways in which the corporate governance practices of Alea Group Holdings
(Bermuda) Ltd differ from those set out in the Code are as follows:

+ Board and Committee Composition:

The Code principles prescribe that a Company should have a balance of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors such that no individual or small group of individuals can dominate the Board's decision
making, and that at least half the Board, excluding the Chairman, comprise independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Excluding the Chairman, two of the remaining eight Directors are independent Non-Executive Directors,
four are Non-Executive KKR Directors and two are Executive Directors.

The Code requirement is that independent Non-Executive Directors comprise the whole of the Audit
and Remuneration Committee membership and the majority of the Nomination Committee
membership.

Half the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee rembership comprise
independent Non-Executive Directors. However the senior independent Non-Executive Director as
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee has a casting vote on this committee when votes are evenly
cast giving independent Non-Executive Directors a majority of the voting rights on this Committee.
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Performance Evaluation:

The Board does not conduct a formal annual performance evaluation of ifself, its committees or its
individual members including the Chairman.

Retirement of Directors by Rotation:

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws the KKR Directors (James R Fisher, Todd A Fisher, Perry
Golkin and Scott C Nuttall} are not subject to retirement by rotation.

Shareholder Approval of Long Term Incentive Plans:

Except with respect to share based plans, the Board of Directors does not request approval of the
shareholders of the Company’s long term incentive plans.
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This report sets out the remuneration policies for the Company’s Directors and key management, details
the remuneration earned by the Directors during the years ended 31 December 20106 and 31 December
2005 and contains other relevant information.

Detaits given of the remuneration received during the reporting period for each of the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors include Directors’ interests in share awards and options (tolal number of options
granted, performance criteria, if any, exercise price, exercise period, vesting criteria) and Restricted Stock
Units (‘(RSUs’) (number granted, vesting periods).

The Remuneration Committee

Details of the Remuneration Committes's membership and terms of reference are sat out in the corporate
governance report.

Remuneration policy

The Group's remuneration policy has been adjusted to take into consideration the Gioup's announced self-
managed run-off strategy. The Group seeks to provide remuneration and retention packages appropriate
for a run-off operation in each market in which the Group operates in order to retain high calibre employees
and encourage and reward superior performance in a manner which is consistent with the interests of all
stakeholders.

In the past, in order to align senior executives’ longer-term interests with those of shareholders, shares and
options were awarded with benefits that vest over a number of years and/or are based on the fulfiment of
certain conditions. These share and option schemes have been discontinued and no further awards are
contemplated.

Salary and bonuses

The information below details the Directors’ fees earned, basic salary paid, bonus paid and the monetary
value of all other benefits for each person who held office at any time during the year.

Fees/Basic salary Bonus Benefits Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Director's name $'000s $000s $'000s $'000s $°000s $'000s $'000s $'000s
Chairman
John Reeve 138 138 Nil Nil Nil Nil 138 138
Executive Directors
Mark Cloutier' 179 Nil 600 Nil 2 Nil 781 Nil
Kirk H Lusk? 131 Nil 800 Nil 6 Nil 937 Nil
Mark L Ricciardelii® 503 750 Nil 550 59 37 562 1,337
Non-Executive Directors
Timothy C Faries® 48 48 Nil Nil Nil Nil 48 48
James R Fisher® 70 70 Nil Nil Nil Nil 70 70
Todd A Fisher® 55 55 Nil Nil Nil Nil 55 55
Perry Golkin® 55 55 il Nil Nil Nil 55 55
R Glenn Hilliard 80 80 Nil Nil Nil Nil 80 80
Edward B Jobe ’ 17 55 Nil Nil Nil Nil 17 55
Scott C Nuttall 8 55 55 Ni! Nil Nil Nil 55 55

For Notes ' see page 35
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Base salary

The base salary for an Executive Director is reviewed periodically by the Remuneration Committee in line
with comparators within peer organisations. The Remuneration Committee engaged the assistance of
Hewitt, its expert independent remuneration consultant in this respect in 2006.

Bonus/Retention

The Group discentinued its broad based discretionary bonus scheme for performance year 2005. No
bonuses were paid in 2006 based on 2005 year performance.

In 2005 certain key management personnel received retention bonuses which generally paid lump sum
amounts equatl to 6 to 12 months salary on dates 6 to 12 months, respectively, following the award if the
employee remained employed until such date unless the employee was involuntarily separated from the
Group other than for cause.

Commencing in 2006, the Board revised the Group's bonus programs. The Board consulted with Hewitt
and determined to establish two separate bonus plans and utilise one plan to incentivise employees to
manage the run-off operations in accordance with preset objectives, taking into consideration the need for
continuity and the time required to effect the strategy (the Annual Incentive Plan} and another plan to
incentivise senior executives, including the Executive Directors, to meet financial targets (the Executive
Incentive Plan). Bonuses under both plans were awarded and paid in January 2007 for the 2006
performance year.

Commencing with the 2007 performance year, the Annual Incentive Plan bonuses are to be paid out in
semi-annual instalments of 30% payable with respect to the periods ending 30 June and 70% payable with
respect to the periods ending 31 December, so as to weight payments towards completion of annual
targets.

The Executive Incentive Plan is applicable to fiscal years 2006 through 2009. The actual award payable
under the Executive Incentive Plan depends on a combination of formulaic and discretionary performance
factors determined by the Board, including commutation of reinsurance treaties at a savings to book value

and release of funds from the operating companies to the holding company.

The amount payable to any Executive Incentive Plan participant, including an Executive Director in any
year is limited to twice that participant’'s base salary and is paid out in 50%, 30% and 20% annual
instalments over a three year period or if earlier, upon expiration of the plan or a change in control of the
Group, provided that the participant must remain employed to receive each subsequent payment. Any
amounts awarded under the Executive Incentive Plan in excess of twice the base salary of all participants
is carried over into future years and paid out to all participants on a pro rata basis upon expiration of the
Plan or upon a change in control of the Group. It is anticipated that this Executive Incentive Plan will also
act as an ongoing retention mechanism for key management personnel that perform well.

Mr. Cloutier received a $500,000 bonus under the Executive Incentive Pian described above and also
received a $100,000 sign on bonus, both paid in 2007. These amounts are reflected in the table above.

Mr. Lusk also received a $500,000 bonus under the Executive Incentive Plan described above, paid in
2007 and also received payment in October 2006 of a $300,000 instalment of a retention promise made to
him prior to his becoming a director. These amounts are reflected in the table above.

Mr. Ricciardelli received a $550,000 bonus in 2005 as guaranteed by the terms of his employment
agreement. See Payments to Former Director for details about Mr. Ricciardelli's separation arrangements.
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Pension benefits

Following a decision on 26 June 2000, the Company only operates defined contribution schemes whereby
the cost to the Company is restricted to the proportion of eligible remuneration it coritributes for the benefit
of the Executive Directors and employees. With the exception of the Supplemental Defined Contribution
Plan and the Contractual Pension Contribution Promise, each described below, all such defined
contribution schemes are managed by independent third parties.

The Company created a Supplemental Defined Contribution Plan for the benefit of Mr. Ricciardelli, whereby
for so long as Mr. Ricciardelli remained employed with the Company or any Company affiliate, for each
fiscal year an account established by the Company for the benefit of Mr. Ricciardel i was credited with an
amount, if any, equal to the excess of (i) twenty percent (20%) of Mr. Ricciardelli's base salary over (i) the
total amounts credited to Mr. Ricciardelli's 401(k) matching account and the Company Profit-Sharing
Account under the Alea North America 401(k) Savings Plan in respect of such fiscal year. Following Mr.
Ricciardelli's resignation in 2006, the Group paid out $383,136 in deferred compensation in connection
with the contractual requirements of the Defined Contribution Plan. Of this amount, $114,783 was accrued
in 2006 and the full amount was paid on 1 March 2007.

In 2004, the Company purchased an annuity for the benefit of Mr. Ricciardelli to replace the expected value
of pension amounts that would have accrued had he remained with his previous empioyer, which shall be
payable on 23 November 2011 as a lump sum with a minimum cash value of $50,000. The cost to the
Company to purchase the annuity was $718,859, including a tax gross-up amount cf $292,935. No further
obligations of the Company to Mr. Ricciardelli for pension benefits remain outstanding.

The pension contributions made for the benefit of Executive Directors who held office at any time during the
year were as follows:

Pension contributions Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Director’s name $'000s $'000s
Mark Cloutier’ 13 N/A
Kirk H Lusk® 3 N/A
Mark L Ricciardelli* * 115 163

* See also Payments to Former Director
1,23
For Notes see page 35.

The Company does not provide pension benefits to Non-Executive Directors.
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Share options

Details of all share option movements for any Director having share options who held office during any part
of the year are as follows:

As at1 : As at31
Date of ' Op Opti Exercise Exercise Exercise
Director's name grant Plan name v granted lapsing December period from period to price Vesting
2006 2006
James R Fisher 5 19.05.00 Separate Award 231,720 Nil Nil 231,720 19.05.00 19.05.15 $3.22 On grant
James R Fisher 5 18.12.01  Separate Award 232,620 Nil Nil 232,620 19.12.01 19.12.16 $4.30  Ongrant
. Exacutive Option and p . .
Kirk H Lusk 02.07.04 Stock Pian 46,010 Nil Nil 46,010 02.07.04 01.07.14 £2,365 Time
N Exscutive Option anc . . .
Kirk H Lusk 24.03.05 Stock Plan 65,000 Nil Nil 65,000 24.03.05 23.03.15 £1.86 Time
Mark L Exscutive Option and . .
Ricciardalli 25.03.04 Stock Plan 659,284 Nil 659,284 0 25.03.05 25.03.14 £2.495 Time
Mark L Exscutive Option and . .
Ricciardalli 24,03.05 Stock Plan 175,000 Nil Nil 175,000 24.03.06 M.09.07 £1.86 Time

No options were exercised during the course of the year. The market price of shares trading on the London
Stock Exchange at the close of business on 29 December 2006 was 81.75 pence, and the range during
2006 was 103.5 pence to 55,75 pence.

For Note ° see page 35.

Terms of options

Time-vesting options for Executive Directors have historically vested at 20% per annum over a five-year
period but the grant on 24 March 2005 vests in its entirety on the third anniversary of the date of grant. A
portion of the share options awarded in 2003 under the 2002 Stock and Option Plan were performance
options. The Company met all necessary performance criteria in 2003 and such options now vest rateably
over a five-year period commencing 4 April 2003. Typically unvested options for Executive Directors expire
immediately upon termination of employment and vested time-vesting and performance-vesting options
expire after a period following termination of employment. Such period until expiry varies based upon the
nature of termination, with termination due to death or disability allowing a longer exercise period than
resignation. All vested options granted to Executive Directors under the 2002 Plan and the Executive Plan
to date other than the grant made on 24 March 2005 have been made subject to a call right of the
Company exercisable on termination of employment. This call right expires on the fifth anniversary of the
first date that the Executive Director acquired options in the Company, with any appreciation thereon
subject to recapture based upon the reason for the Executive Director's termination and the length of
service.

In line with institutional guidelines the number of options granted under the Executive Option and Stock
Plan in any rolling 10 year period may not exceed 10 per cent of the ordinary share capital of the Company
at the time. There are no formal individual participation limits under the Company's share option, RSU or
share award plans, but the annual aggregate awards and individual awards to Executive Directors are
within the discretion of the Remuneration Committee.
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Terms of options {continued)

Under the 2002 Stock and Option Plan, if there is a change of control, all unvested options that have not
expired or been cancelled will become immediately exercisable in full. A ‘change of control’ means, and
shall be deemed to have occurred if (i) Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. (KKR)}, its affiliates and the
management group {which includes all employee and related party investors) shall et any time not own, in
the aggregate, directly or indirectly, beneficially or of record, at least 35% of the outstanding voting equity of
the Company (other than as a result of one or more widely distributed offerings of common stack of the
Company, in each case whether by the Company or by KKR, its affiliates or the management group} and/or
(i) any Person or Persons {(as such terms are defined below} shall at any time have acquired direct or
indirect beneficial ownership of a percentage of the outstanding voting equity of the Company that exceeds
the percentage of such voting equity then beneficially owned, in the aggregate, by KXR, its affiliates or the
management group, unless, in the case of either clause (i) or (ii) above, KKR, its affiliates and the
management group have, at such time, by contract, written proxy or other written evidence of voting power,
the collective right or the ability to elect or designate for election a majority of the Board of Directors of the
Company. ‘Person’ means an individual, partnership, corporation, business trust, joinl. stock company, trust,
unincorporated association, joint venture, governmental authority or other entity of whatever nature.
‘Persons’ means two or more persons acting together as a partnership, limited paitnership, syndicate or
other group for the purpose of acquiring, holding or disposing of securities of the Company.

Under Parts B and C of the Executive Option and Stock Plan, the Board has discretion to accelerate the
vesting of all options in certain circumstances including a change of control of the Company pursuant to, or
followed by, a takeover offer, a court sanctioned scheme of arrangement, or a windirg up of the Company.
In these instances the accelerated options would lapse one month after their acceleration. If a demerger or
special dividend is proposed which in the opinion of the Board would affect the value of the Company’s
shares to a material extent the Board has discretion to allow options to be exercised for a period before or
after such event. In such circumstances the Board may also in its discretion, and acting fairly and
reasonably, determine that any perfarmance condition attaching to an option has been satisfied.

Lapse of options

Options awarded typically expire and cease to be exercisable 10 years after the date such option is granted
(although the Board has agreed to extend such term by an additional five years for James R Fisher and an
additional three months in other circumstances), and terminate earlier if the participant's employment or
service terminates prior to the end of such option term.

Restricted Stock Units
Details of all RSU awards for any Director having been awarded RSUs are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2006

As at RSUs RSUs RSUs As at 31

Director’'s name Plan name 1 January granted vested lapsed December

20086 2006

Mark L Ricciardelli Executive Option 70,918 Nil All remaining Nil Nil
and Stock Pian unvested RSUs

were vested and
related shares
delivered in 2006

Mr. Ricciardelli was awarded RSUs valued at the date of grant at US$325,000 (US$4.5828 per share),
based on the average of the middle market quotation of shares in the Company on each of the five dealing
days, immediately before the date of grant, with the following vesting schedule: 5% on 31 December
2005, 25% on 31 December 2007 and 50% on 31 December 2012. This award was intended as
compensation for restricted shares forfeited by Mr. Ricciardelli upon his departure from his previous
employer. Each RSU entitled Mr. Ricciardelli to one fully paid share in the Company upon vesting. The
vesting of all of Mr. Ricciardelli's remaining RSUs was accelerated in connection with his Separation
Agreement and following termination of his employment, Mr. Ricciardelli sold all RSU related shares on the
London Stock Exchange on 2 October 2006 for US$104,263.
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Agreement with a former Executive Director regarding RSUs shares and options and share loan
repayment

In accordance with Mr. Ricciardelli's Separation Agreement, it was agreed that following termination of his
employment, Mr. Ricciardelli would be permitted to sell all of his purchased shares as well as shares he
received in connection with the vesting of his RSU award, totalling 235,739 Common Shares on the London
Stock Exchange on 2 October 2006 for consideration of GBP 182,346.71. Mr. Ricciardelli applied $313,360
of the proceeds in full repayment of the $300,000 principal balance of his remaining share loan plus accrued
interest. All of Mr. Ricciardelli's vested and unvested options are subject to forfeiture in accordance with their
terms following the termination of his employment.

Directors’ service and loan contracts
Mark Cloutier and Kirk H Lusk are employed under contracts of employment.

Mr. Lusk's contract is governed by Connecticut law and terminable by either party upon a maximum 6
months’ notice. In the event that Mr. Lusk is terminated without cause as a result of a change in contro! of
the Group or otherwise, and he signs a release agreement he is entitled to receive a lump-sum payment of
two times his basic salary.

Mr. Lusk was granted a $49,998 loan in connection with the common share purchase program, bearing
interest at 4.1625% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August, commencing in 2005. The Board
approved a deferral of principal repayment on Mr. Lusk’s loan in 2005. In October 2006, Mr. Lusk paid the
2006 principal instalment of $10,000 on this loan plus accrued interest of $2,118 through the instalment
payment date.

Mr. Cloutier's contract is governed by Bermuda law and terminable by either party upon 12 months’ prior
notice. The Company is entitled to terminate Mr. Cloutier's employment for cause without notice or pay in
lieu of notice.

Dismissal of Messrs Cloutier and Lusk without notice and in the absence of specific grounds may require
compensation payments equivalent to allowances and benefits that would have been due during the notice
period.

Non-Executive Directors, other than the KKR Directors, who have no fixed term of appointment, are
appointed for fixed terms of three years commencing from the first Annual General Meeting following
appointment. These Directors will receive new three year appointments following their expiration, subject to
their re-election at the next Annual General Meeting, as applicable. All Non-Executive Directors’
appointments are terminable upon one month’s notice by either party, without entitlement for compensation
for loss of office.
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Directors’ remuneration

Mark Cloutier and Kirk H Lusk are not separately compensated for their services as Eixecutive Directors of
the Company. The following remuneration has been approved for the Non-Executive Directors pursuant to
their letters of appointment. Non-Executive Directors receive no benefits other than their fees and do not
participate in any incentive plans. The Company has agreed to reimburse each Director his reasonable
expenses in the performance of his duties.

Timothy C Faries
Timothy C Faries is entitled to an annual fee of $40,000 payable together with an additional annual fee of
$7,500 in respect of the Director's membership of the Nomination Committee.

James R Fisher

James R Fisher is entitled to an annual fee of $40,000 payable together with an additional annual fee of
$30,000 in respect of the Director's office of Chairman of the Audit Committee. In addition the Company
pays annual management fees to Fisher Capital Corp. LLC as further detailed in this Report on page 35.

Todd A Fisher

Todd A Fisher is entitled to an annual fee of $40,000 payable together with additional annual fees of $7,500
in respect of the Director's membership of the Nomination Committee and $7,500 in respect of the
Director's membership of the Remuneration Committee.

Perry Golkin

Perry Golkin is entitled to an annual fee of $40,000 payable together with additional annual fees of $7,500
in respect of the Director's membership of the Nomination Committee and $7,500 in respect of the
Director's membership of the Remuneration Committee.

R Glenn Hilliard

R Glenn Hilliard is entitled to an annual fee of $50,000 payable together with additional annual fees of
$15,000 in respect of the Director's membership of the Audit Committee and $15,C00 in respect of the
Director’s office as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Edward B Jobe

Edward B Jobe is entitted to an annual fee of $40,000 payable together with an additional annual fee of
$15,000 in respect of the Director's membership of the Audit Committee. Edward E Jobe resigned from
the Board and the Audit Committee on 20 April 2006 and received a pro-rata portion of his annual fees.

Scott C Nuttall
Scott C Nuttall is entitled to an annual fee of $40,000 payable together with an adcitional annual fee of
$15,000 in respect of the Director's membership of the Audit Committee.

John Reeve

John Reeve is entitled to an annual fee of $100,000 in respect of the office of Chiairman of the Board
payable together with additional annual fees of $15,000 in respect of the Director's mernbership of the Audit
Committee, $15,000 in respect of the Director's office as Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
$7.500 in respect of the Director's membership on the Remuneration Committee.

Payments to former Director

Mark L Ricciardelli (the former Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Comipany) resigned all of
his positions with the Group on 31 August, 2006. Pursuant to a separation agreement dated 29 June 2006,
Mr. Ricciardelli received $1,000,000 on 6 July 2006, and $1,155,613 on 15 September, 2006 with the |atter
payment in consideration for full and final settlement of all claims in relation to his employment. In addition,
the Group agreed to pay COBRA ($17,591) and office and secreterial services for one year ($15,000), which
amounts are included in the Salary and Bonus Table above. See Agreement with a former Executive Director
for a description of the handling of Mr. Ricciardelli's shares, options, RSUs and share loan repayment. See
also Pension Benefits for a description of the handling of Mr. Ricciardelli's pension benefiis.
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Notes to the Directors’' remuneration report

1

Mark Cloutier was appointed Group President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director of the Board on 1 September
2006. All amounts shown in the tables represent the relevant amounts eamed, paid or declared for the period during
which he served on the Board of Directors.

Kirk H Lusk was appointed Group Chief Financial Officer on 30 August 2005 and a Director of the Board on 1 September
2006. All amounts shown in the tables represent the relevant amounts earned, paid or declared for the period during
which he served on the Board of Directors.

Mark L Ricciardelli was appointed Group President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director of the Board on 24 June
2004. Mr. Ricciardelli resigned from such positions on 31 August 2006. Afl amounts shown in the tables represent the
relevant amounts earned, paid or declared for the period during which he served on the Board of Direclors. See
Payments to Former Director on page 34 for amounts paid in connection with Mr. Ricciardelli's separation from the
Company.

The Company pays fees for legal and corporate administrative services provided by Appleby Hunter Bailhache, a law firm
of which Timothy C Faries is a partner; however, the Company reports only amounts paid directly to Mr. Faries in
connection with his Board membership.

The figures for James R Fisher do not include $350,000 of annual management fees paid to Fisher Capital Corp. LLC, a
company of which Mr. Fisher is managing member and majority owner and thus deemed to have a beneficial interest.

Fisher Capital Corp. LLC, a company of which James R Fisher is managing member and majority owner and thus
deemed to have a beneficial interest, received options and acquired shares outside of the 2002 Stock and Option Plan.

The figures for Todd A Fisher, Perry Golkin and Scott C Nuttall do not include $750,000 of annual management fees paid
to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. LP, a company of which Messrs Fisher, Golkin and Nuttail are executives.

Edward B Jobe was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 17 September 2004 and received pro-rated fees for
performance of his Board and Committee duties in 2004. Mr. Jobe resigned on 20 March 2006, effective 20 April 2006.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 3 April 2007.

R Glenn Hilliard
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements. The
Bermudan Companies Act 1981 permits the Company and its subsidiaries (togetier, the ‘Group’), to
prepare financial statements which comprise the consclidated income statement, the zonsolidated balance
sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income and
expense and the related Notes 1 to 46 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRS").

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year
the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful
representation of the effect of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions
and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting
Standards Board’s ‘Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Stalements.” In virtually
all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards. Directors are required to:

s properly select and apply accounting policies, including whether to prepare financial statements
an a going concern basis;

« present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

¢ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transzctions, other events
and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company, for safeguarding the assets and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors have elected to make some Directors’ remuneration disclosures, although the Company is
eligible for an exemption from making such disclosures since it is not governed by the LIK Companies Act.

The Corporate Governance report sets out governance disclosures the Directors have elected to make as
well as those required in accordance with United Kingdom Listing Rules of the Financia! Services Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom and Bermuda governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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HOLDINGS (BERMUDA) LTD

We have audited the financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda)
Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Recognised Income and Expense and the related Notes 1 to 46. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are set out in the Statement of
Directors' Respoensibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance
with the relevant financial reporting framework and whether the financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors’' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

In addition we repart to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records and if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman’'s Statement, the Chief
Executive Officer's Report, the Financial Review, the Board of Directors’ biographies, the Directors’ Repont,
the Corporate Governance Statement, the Directors Remuneration Report and the Statement of the
Directors’ Responsibilities. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilittes do not extend
to any further information outside the Annual Report.

Basis of audit opinion

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and Company's circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinicn we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the
group's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its loss for the year then ended;

+ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981; and

+ the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion, which is not qualified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in
Note 2 to the financial statements concerning the ¢company’s ability to continue as a going concern, The
company has borrowings which are subject to covenants and are due for repayment in September 2007.
Compliance with those covenants at the year-end and in the future and availability of sufficient cash
resources to meet the repayment is based on the estimates in the balance sheet and cash flow projections,
which are prepared on the basis of assumptions that are subject to material uncertainty. These conditions,
along with the other matters explained in Note 2 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue as a going
concern. The financial information does not include adjusiments that would result if the company was
unable to continue as a going concern.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

3 Aprii 2007
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Year ended 31 December 2006

Consolidated income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Notes $'000 $°000
Gross premiums written 7 (74,919) 997,528
Revenue
Premium revenue 303,338 1,347,768
Premium ceded to reinsurers (87,422) (261,026)
Net insurance premium revenue 7 215,916 1,086,742
Fee income 7 3,143 3,006
Investment income 8 94,821 89,138
Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets 9 {2,500) 672
Net realised gains on sale of disposal group 10 4,336 -
Net realised (losses)/gains on sale of renewal rights 5 {5,020) 61,079
Total revenue 7 310,696 1,240,637
Expenses
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses 173,408 1,146,589
Insurance claims gnd loss adjustment expenses (16,716) (227,320)
recovered from reinsurers
Net insurance claims 7,11 156,692 919,269
Acquisition costs 7 69,292 335,788
Other operating expenses 12,13 66,555 95,435
Restructuring costs 6 1,087 22,354
Total expenses 293,626 1,372,846
Results of operating activities 7 17,070 (132,209)
Finance costs 14 (24,407) (19,892)
Loss before income tax 7 (7,337) (152,101)
Income tax credit/(expense) 15 6,502 (26,827)
Loss for the year {835) (178,928)

Earnings per share for losses attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company during the period:
Earnings per share on operating activities

Basic ($) 17 (0.00) (1.03)
Diluted ($) 17 (0.00) (1.03)
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Year ended 31 December 2006

Consolidated balance sheet

As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Notes $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 18 6,398 9,908
Intangible assets 19 8,479 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 20 3,506 107,000
Financial assets
Equity securities
- available for sale 21 198 161
Debt securities
- available for sale 21 1,664,341 2,205,532
Loans and receivables including insurance receivables 22 440,961 678,158
Deferred tax assets 23 1,154 997
Reinsurance contracts 25 863,475 1,057,639
Cash and cash equivalents 24 157,220 116,962
Total assets 3,145,732 4,184,836
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 25 1,941,514 2,872,456
Borrowings 26 317,267 316,631
Provisions 27 5,241 17,562
Other liabilities and charges 28 40,954 37,145
Trade and other payables 29 355,606 447 648
Deferred tax liabilities 23 - 1,878
Current income tax liabilities 1,009 1,087
Total liabilities 2,661,591 3,694,407
Net assets 484,141 490,429
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capital 31, 30 1,738 1,737
Other reserves 30 687,377 692,831
Retained loss 30 (204,974} {204,139}
Total equity 484,141 490,429

Approved by the Board of Directors on 3 April 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

Kirk H Lusk
Group Chief Financiail Officer

41



FAm b A WA W WY AN WAL TRl WAL AW

Year ended 31 December 2006

Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Notes $'000 $'000
Cash {used in)/generated from gperations 35 {586,999) 114,453
Income tax recoveredf{paid) 1,949 (3,271)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (585,050) 111,182
Cash flows generated from/{used In} investing actlvities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (735) (6,656}
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 424 2,343
Cash payments to acquire equity and debt securities (3,820,920} (2,612,771)
Cash receipts from sales of equity and debt securities 4,356,828 2,351,715
Net amounts outstanding for securities (6,448) (2,087)
Cash receipts from sale of disposal group 34,726 -
Cash receipts from interest and dividends 85,429 92,123
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 649,304 (175,333)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities
Repurchases of ordinary shares - (2,135)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares - -
Proceeds from issuance of trust preferred securities - 20,000
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders - {12,203)
Capital raising fees - 240
Interest paid on borrowings (21,888) (16,103)
Net cash used in financing activities (21,888} (10,201}
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42,366 (74,352)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 116,962 193,628
Cash of a disposal group sold (4,477) -
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and bank overdrafts 2,369 (2,314)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 157,220 116,962
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Year ended 31 December 2006

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $°000

Loss on revaluation of available-for-sale investments (11,939) (20,519)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 5,481 (4,934)

Tax on items taken directly into equity - (2,120}

Net loss recognised directly in equity (6,458) (27,573)

Transfers

Transfers to profit and loss on sale of available-for-sale

investments 913 (6.074)

Tax on items transferred from equity - 669

Total transfers net of tax 913 {5,405)

Loss for the year (835) (178,928)

Total recognised income and expense for the year {6,380) {211,906)

The total recognised income and expense are attributable to the Company's equity holders.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries {together the “Group”) were
engaged in the business of underwriting insurance and reinsurance risks. The Group operates through four
principat operating segments representing London market business, North American business including
alternative risk transfer and reinsurance, Continental European reinsurance and financial services. In 2005
the Group ceased to write new business and placed all operations into run-off. Although the Group has
disposed of the renewal rights for Alea Alternative Risk, Alea London and Alea Europe and placed all
operations into run-off, the Group will continue to service claims relating to business written during 2005
and prior for the foreseeable future. As such, it is considered appropriate 10 recognise all amounts as
relating to continuing operations.

The Company is registered in Bermuda and is listed on the London Stock Exchange. As such it is required
to prepare its financial information in accardance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, which permits the
Company and the Group to prepare financial statements which comprise the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated
statement of recognised income and expense and the related Notes 1 to 46 in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). Accordingly, the financia! information has been
prepared in accordance with Bermuda Law.

2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements, as required by the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom's Financial Services
Authority (“FSA”), have been prepared on the basis of IFRS recognition and measurement principles which
are applicable at year end 20086.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, rounded to the nearest
thousand. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial instruments which have been classified as available for sale and financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to exercise its
judgement in making estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgement about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other sources. Actual resulis may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the periods in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only those
periods or in the periods of the revision and future periods if applicable.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in following
years are discussed below.

As IFRS are limited in specifying full insurance-specific guidelines to the requirements of IFRS 4 ‘insurance
Contracts’ pending completion of the second phase of the |ASB’s project on insurance contracts,
accounting policies for insurance contracts have been selected with primary consideration to existing UK
GAAP as permitted by IFRS 4. The annual basis of accounting has been applied to all classes of business.
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis

The Company's borrowings include a $150 million bank term loan and a $50 million bank revolver facility
with its lending bank syndicate. These arrangements are subject to two financial covenants which require
that the Group maintains a minimum adjusted consolidated tangible net worth and a minimum debt-to-total-
capitalisation ratio. If the Group were to breach either one of these covenants, the lenders would have the
right to demand earty repayment of these loans in advance of the scheduled repayment date of September
2007.

The Group has met these minimum requirements at 31 December 2006 on the basis of the Group's
balance sheet at that date, and based on the Group's current projecticns, the Directors believe that the
Group will continue to be able to service these borrowings, comply with the financial covenants and repay
or refinance these amounts when they fall due. However, both the balance sheet and the projections reflect
assumptions made by the Directors that are subject to material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
as to whether the Group will be able to continue as a going concern and hence realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the ordinary course of business. In particular:

. the fair value recorded in the balance sheet of the proceeds arising from the sale of renewal rights
(see Note 5) depends on assumptions as to the level of future premium income written by the
purchasers of those renewal rights;

. the level of insurance reserves (see Notes 4 and 25) recorded in the balance sheet depends on
actuarial assumptions relating to the likelihood of insured events occurring, the quantum of claims
(that have occurred, whether reported or not) and the time when claim payments fall due; and

. the availability to the Company of funds to repay the loans depends on insurance subsidiaries
obtaining regulatory approval to make intra-group distributions or loans as well as the two
significant balance sheet assumptions set out above.

The Group is in an ongoing dialogue with potential sources of refinancing and with the lending bank
syndicate regarding the Group’s business outlook and strategy and will work closely with the syndicate to
manage any future issues should they arise. Run-off plans have been presented to regulators in each
relevant territory and the Group expects to maintain continuous and open dialogue with them. On this basis,
the Directors believe that the Company will be able to repay, renew or renegotiate bank funding as
necessary during the remaining term of the loans, and in any case on maturity of the loans in September
2007, and therefore that it is appropriate to continue to prepare these financial statements on a going
concern basis. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessary if the
going concern basis was not appropriate.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies in

force for the period ending 31 December 2006. A summary of the principal accounting policies is provided
in Note 3.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all Group entities.

Basis of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate all the enterprises in which Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd
owns or controls, directly or indirectly, the majority of the voting shares. There are no other enterprises over
which the Group has the ability to exercise control.

Intra-group transactions, balances, and gains and losses are eliminated except to the extent that the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of subsidiaries liquidated or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement up to the effective date of liquidation or disposal, as appropriate.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from other business segments. A geographical segment is
engaged in providing services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional
currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, which
is the Group's presentation currency.

b) Group companies

The functional currencies for Group entities are usually the currencies of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rates at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at transactional or average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation {continued)
c) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the revaluation reserve in equity.

To safeguard against fluctuations in exchange rates, Group entities seek to match assets and liabilities in
currency. However, currency gains/losses which do arise from transactions in a currency other than a
functional currency are reported in the income statement within other income or other expenses, as
applicahle,

The foreign currency rates used for significant foreign currencies are as follows:

31 December 2006 31 December 2006 31 December 2005 31 December 2005

Average Closing Average Closing
British pound 0.5437 0.5087 0.5500 0.5788
Euro 0.7964 0.7591 0.8022 0.8420
Swiss franc 1.2544 1.2201 1.2418 1.3105

Insurance contracts
The Group enters into contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as
risk, other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of a contract to the issuer. Financial risk is defined
as the risk of a possible future change in cne or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other
variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the
contract.

Those contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for by recognising an asset or
liability based on the consideration paid or received less any explicitly identified premiums or fees to be
retained by the ceding company. Future cash flows are estimated to calculate the effective yield, and
revenues and expenses are recorded as other income or expense.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Premium revenue

For all insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue proportionally over the period of
coverage, having regard, where appropriate, to the incidence of risk and this is known as earned premium.
The portion of premium receivable on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet
date is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission
and are exclusive of taxes and duties levied thereon.

Premiums comprise total premiums earned under contracts incepting during the financial year, together
with adjustments arising in the financial year to premiums earned in respect of business written in previous
financial years. Premiums also include estimates of pipeline premiums earned on business written but not
yet notified to the Group.

In respect of both risks accepted and risks ceded by the Group, premiums and claims relating to
reinsurance arrangements which do not involve significant transfer of insurance risk are not recognised in
the income statement but are accounted for as deposits due from, or liabilities due to, reinsurers or cedants.

Reinsurance .

The Group cedes premium and risks in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for
losses arising from risks accepted. Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers on contracts that are deemed
to transfer significant insurance risk are recognised as an expense in a manner that is consistent with the
recognition of insurance premium revenue arising from the underlying risks being protected. Reinsurance
contracts that do not meet the definition of an insurance contract are accounted for as financial assets. The
portion of premium ceded to reinsurers on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance
sheet date is reported as the unearned premium asset.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recovered from reinsurers are accounted for in the same
accounting period as the claims for the related inward insurance and reinsurance business being covered
and are estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsurance policy.

Provision is made for potentially non-collectable reinsurance recoveries and the expesure of the Group to
credit risk is assessed through the aggregation of reinsurance assets due from counter parties belonging to
the same insurance groups.

Renewal rights transactions

Renewal rights transactions represent hooks of insurance and reinsurance business sold to third parties.
The Directors use fair value accounting for renewal rights transactions. Valuations and revaluations of such
transactions are recognised in the Income Statement as net realised gains or losses on sale of renewal
rights.

In determining the fair value for the business sold, the Directors value the discounted estimated future cash
flows arising from specified percentages of applicable commissionable premiums written over the
applicable pericd in accordance with the terms of the sale contracts. In determining the fair market value of
renewal rights sold, the Directors consider the prior production and growth of the businesses sold, external
projections and the maost recent assessment of the businesses sold. The Directors also make certain
assumptions about levels of program transfer and renewal probabilities of future premiums.

As the ultimate consideration receivable is dependent upon the future levels of business generated on
renewal in relation to the rights sold over differing time periods as specified in the sale contracts, it is
necessary for the Directors to review and re-evaluate the fair value of the consideration receivable based
on the likely volumes of renewal business that will be written. Consequently, adjustments to the
consideration receivable recognised in the Income Statement will be made at each balance sheet date
where required.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC")
Costs which vary and are directly associated with the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance contracts
including brokerage, commissions, underwriting expenses and other acquisition costs are deferred and
amortised over the period of contract, consistent with the earning of premium. These are shown as a
capitalised asset in the balance sheet.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses comprise the estimated cost of all cfaims occurring prior to
the balance sheet date, whether reported or not, and include loss adjustment expenses related to internal
and external direct and indirect claims handling costs, and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous
years. Claims handling costs include related internal and external direct and indirect claims handling costs
and consist of third party loss adjustor fees, legal expenses and claims staff costs.

Liabilities for unpaid claims are determined on an individual case basis and are based on the estimated
ultimate cost of all claims notified but not settled by the balance sheet date, together with the provision for
related claims handling costs and net of salvage and subrogation recoveries. The provision also includes
the estimated cost of claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date based on statistical
methods.

The Group discounts certain categories of claims provisions, such as certain casualty and auto liability
claims, where the expected average interval between the date of claim settlement and the balance sheet
date is in excess of four years in accordance with the statutory regulations of the European Union. The
discount rate used is 4.5% (2005: 4.5%).

Liability adequacy test (“LAT”)
At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contract liabilities net of related DAC and premiums receivable.

Provision is made where current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenses arising after the end of the financial year from contracts concluded before that date
is expected to exceed the provision for unearned premiums net of DAC and premiums receivable.
Investment income from the assets backing the liabilities is taken into account in calculating the provision.
The assessment of whether a provision is necessary is made on the basis of information available as at the
balance sheet date, after offsetting surpluses and deficits arising on products which are managed together.
Any deficiency is immediately charged to the income statement initially by writing off DAC and by
subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be reinstated.

Investment income

investment income includes dividends and interest. Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis that is
when the right to receive payment is established. Interest and rental income are recognised on an accruals
basis. Interest income in respect of the Group's available for sale investments is recognised using the
effective interest method.

Fee income

Fee income represents income arising on finite risk reinsurance and insurance contracts without significant
transfer of insurance risk and expense related to deposits received from reinsurers. Such income is
recognised over the term of the contract.
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Employee Benefits
a) Share-based payments

The cost of awards to employees that take the form of shares or rights to shares is charged to the
income statement as personnel costs on a straight line basis over the period to which the
employee’s performance relates and a corresponding amount is reflected in revenue reserves in
shareholders’ equity. The charge is calculated as being the fair value of the shares at the date of
grant, reduced by any consideration payable by the employee, and a reasonable expectation of the
extent to which performance criteria will be met.

b) Pension costs

The Group only operates defined contribution pension arrangements. Contributions are charged to
the income statement as employee benefit expense as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of each scheme. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise items of equipment only. Equipment is stated at cost less
accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses when appropriate. Depreciation is charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives
vary between three and five years for fixtures and equipment.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if
appropriate.

intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business in the United States. The
Directors consider these licences to have indefinite useful lives. Licences are granted for an indefinite
period and are essential to carry on business. The licences are tested for impairment at each balance sheet
date.

50




Fiimbelt Wit Wi FAISIY WSt Sl Wih T WS

Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Investments — Financial Instruments

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition the Group determines the category of
financial instrument and values it accordingly. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments are acquired,

a) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets, typically equities or bonds. On initial
recognition, the fair value is the cost including transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. On subsequent remeasurement the fair value excludes transaction costs on disposat
and represents the listed bid price. Fair value movements are recognised in equity.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market other than those that the Group intends to sell in the short term
or that it has designated as at fair value through income or available-for-sale. Receivables arising
from insurance contracts are also classified in this category and are reviewed for impairment as
part of the impairment review of loans and receivables.

Trade receivables do not carry any interest rate and are measured at the fair vatue which is their
nominal value less appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. On the initial
recognition of loans the carrying value is determined as the proceeds of the loans less the costs of
the transaction which are amortised over the length of the loan period in accordance with the
effective interest method.

c) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date. The method
of recognising the gain or loss on subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument. Gains or losses on derivatives that are not
classified as hedges are recognised in the income statement. Derivatives are classified as held-for-
trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, as to whether the derivative instruments used in
hedging transactions are expected to be and have been highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
value or cash flows of hedged items.

The Group has not designated any investments to be held to maturity or to be valued at fair value through
profit and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Purchases and sales of securities and currencies are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Investments — Financial Instruments (continued)

Before evaluating whether, and to what extent, de-recognition of a financial asset or liability is appropriate,
the Group determines whether de-recognition should be applied to only part of the financial asset / liability
or group of financial assets / liabilities. The Group only derecognises a financial asset or liability when the
contractual rights and obligations to the cash flows expire or the financial asset / liabilities are transferred
and the Group has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Gains and losses on derecognition are recognised through the income statement. Changes in fair value of
available for sale investments, except for foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses which
are recognised in the income statement, are directly recorded in equity until such time that the financial
asset is derecognised.

In the Company's accounts, investments in Group subsidiaries are stated at net asset value (equity
method} with any movement taken to the Company's revaluation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Impairment of assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income
statement.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. In assessing the value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable in the year and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences, which are
based on the difference between the financial statement carrying values and the tax bases of assets and
liabilities using enacted income tax rates and faws. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is regarded as probable that they will be utilised against sufficient future taxable income. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aflow all or part of the
asset to be utilised.
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3 Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The deferred tax that results from unrealised gains and losses on securities classified as available for sale
is recognised in shareholders’ equity along with those unrealised gains and losses.

Current tax payable by any Group company on distribution to the holding company of the undistributed
profits of any subsidiaries is recognised as deferred tax unless the timing of the distribution of those profits
is controlled by the holding company and the temporary difference is not expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

In accordance with 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’, deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising
from the revaluation of fixed assets even where there is no commitment to sell the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Provisions
a) Restructuring costs and legal claims

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

b) Levies

The Group is subject to various insurance-related assessments or guarantee fund levies. Related
provisions are provided for where there is a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a
past event.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds, net of tax. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments as
consideration for the acquisition of a business are included in the cost of acquisition.
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3 Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting developments

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ in
August 2005. IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial
position and performance and of quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial
instruments. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Analysis of risk

Risk management framewaork
As a global run-off insurance and reinsurance operation, the Group is exposed to various types of risk.

The Board of Directors retains overall responsibility for the risk management framework that has been
established to mitigate the Group's exposure to risk. The Company's Audit Committee, on behalf of the
Board, assesses the effectiveness of the controls established to identify, monitor and mitigate the risks
faced by the Group.

The risks that the Group faces include, but are not limited to:

Insurance risk — risk associated with the uncertainty over the likelihood of an insured event occurring, the
quantumn of the claim, or the time when claims payments will fall due.

Investment and credit risk — risk associated with the Group’s reinsurance arrangements, investment
portfolio, and other counter party credit risk.

Financial risk — risk associated with possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate,
financial instrument price, foreign exchange rate or other variable.

Insurance risk

Underwriting risk

When it was underwriting insurance business, the Group managed the transfer of insurance risk from its
cedants in a number of ways. Underwriting guidelines governed the products it was willing to sell and the
geographical location in which the risk was located. Before risk was accepted, its impact upon the overall
risk profile of the insurance portfolic was assessed. Underwriting controls included the establishment of
limits on underwriting authority and the monitoring of exposure by industry, geographica! region and class of
business.

The Group used a variety of reserving and modelling methods to determine the levels of insurance risk
accepted. The modelling techniques employed helped the Group to monitor, estimate and control its
exposure to natural and man-made catastrophes. Diversification was sought through the range of products
sold and geographical locations in which business was written.

The Group Underwriting Committee monitored emerging issues that affected its exposure to insurance risk
such as new areas of liability and the impact of major losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Iinsurance risk (continued)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

The Group takes steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original liability established.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers any information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to
allow for the possible distorting effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimation of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) is generally subject to a greater degree of
uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where information
about the claim event is available. An assessment of the liability for future claims is affected not only by the
risks inherent in the perils insured but also by changes that may occur in the legal and judicial environment
before claims are settled, all of which affect the quantum of the claim. Additionally, the practical limits to
information flows from insured parties hampers the estimation of the claim amounts.

For casualty risks, for example, claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years have passed
after the event that gave rise to the claims. The Group's casualty business is typically written on an
occurrence basis, meaning that the Group is liable for all insured events that occurred during the term of
contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. Liability claims are therefore
notifted and settled over a long period of time. As a result, for casualty business, a large element of the
claims provision relates to IBNR and will typically display greater variations between initial estimates and
final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities.

For property business, the greatest uncertainty arises from catastrophe events, where a single event affects
a large number of contracts. In such cases the Group estimates the IBNR using an exposure methodology,
assessing each programme written by the Group to determine the expected claims in respect of that event.

For property business other than catastrophe, and for casualty business, the IBNR is typically based on a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and claims-experience-based estimates, with greater weight
given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption
in the estimation technique and is based on a number of factors including previous years' experience,
premium rate changes, market experience and historical claims inflation.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required leve! of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected.
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Insurance risk (continued)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments {continued)

The projections given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible
outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of
the business class and the extent of the development of each underwriting year.

The amount of casualty claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development
of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Casualty contracts are also subject to the emergence of
new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the balance sheet date.

The following table presents the Group's booked gross claims outstanding before claims handling
provisions and before discount as at 31 December 2006 by class of business.

General Motor Workers' Professional  Property MAT' Total
$'million liability Comp.
1999 and prior 102.3 478 20.2 1.0 34.3 96.2 301.8
2000 290 12.6 12.6 19.8 7.6 246 106.2
2001 31.0 9.8 17.1 24.0 4.1 12.3 98.3
2002 32.0 17.8 10.8 38.6 7.7 5.5 112.4
2003 39.1 322 6.3 313 9.0 6.5 1244
2004 426 50.4 11.9 37.3 23.3 0.3 165.8
2005 17.7 66.3 44 237 96.0 0.8 208.9
Reinsurance reserves 293.7 236.9 83.3 175.7 182.0 146.2 1,117.8
Insurance reserves 242.2 81.7 192.4 314 21.8 - 569.5
Total non-life reserves 5359 318.6 275.7 2071 203.8 146.2 1,687.3
Life Structured Settlements 246.2
Life Reinsurance 23.8
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,857.3

1 Marine, Aviation and Transport

The following table analyses Alea’s gross claims outstanding between incurred but not reported {'IBNR’)
and case reserves at 31 December 2006. The insurance and reinsurance splits are in line with the Group's
typical business tail and the relative maturity of the respective books.

Percentage Insurance Reinsurance Total
Case reserves 43% 55% 52%
IBNR 57% 45% 48%
Total 100% 100% 100%
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Insurance risk {continued)
Prior year reserve development

The Group's expected loss development is determined by the Group's internal actuaries based on historical
claims analysis and projected trends. Actual reported losses may vary from expected loss development.
Generally, as an underwriting year matures, the level of newly reported claims decreases.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 the Group experienced an improvement in the prior
year gross reserves before discount and net of commutations of $34.4 million. After reinsurance this was
reduced to a favourable development of $16.9 million (2005: adverse reserves development before
discount of $129.2 million, net of reinsurance and commutation).

After discount the favourable reserves development in 2006 was $5.7 million, net of reinsurance
commutations (2005: adverse reserves development of $123.1 million, net of reinsurance, commutations
and discount).

B82% of the 2006 reserve improvement relates to the Group's reinsurance portfolio. Reinsurance operations
by their nature add further complications to the reserving process, particularly to casualty business, where
there is an inherent lag in the timing and reporting of a loss event from an insured or ceding company to the
reinsurer. This reporting lag creates an even longer period of time between the policy inception and when a
claim is finally settled. As a result, more judgment is required to establish reserves for ultimate losses in
reinsurance operations.

The following table presents the development of the Group’s claims outstanding and claims handling
expense reserves net of reinsurance and before discount for the twelve months ended 31 December 2006
for each of the underwriting vears indicated. An increase is an adverse run-off deviation and a decrease is
a positive run-off deviation to the provision for claims outstanding, net of reinsurance held at the previcus
balance sheet date

Increase/(decrease) in claims Year ended 31 December 2006
outstanding net of reinsurance

$’'million Pre-discount Post discount

insurance Reinsurance Total Total
Underwriting vears 1999 and prior 0.0 (3.2) (3.2) 0.1
Underwriting year 2000 0.0 1.5 15 5.0
Underwriting year 2001 1.6 3.5 5.2 11.4
Underwriting year 2002 20 3.8 5.8 3.9
Underwriting year 2003 (0.1) (1.4) (1.5) {1.5)
Underwriting year 2004 {7.9) (19.3) (26.9) (26.8)
Underwriting year 2005 0.9 1.3 2.2 2.2
Total (3.1) (13.8) (16.9) {5.7)
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Insurance risk {continued)

Historical ultimate loss ratios (‘ULR’)

The ULR is an actuarial estimate of total claims to the point of final settlement as a percentage of gross
ultimate premiums. It excludes expenses. The table below shows the ULR as of 31 December 2006 for
proportional and non-proportional US casualty reinsurance, gross of reinsurance and prior to discounting.
The Group's US casualty reinsurance ULR shown in the table below is the aggregate ULR for Alea North
America, Alea London and Alea Bermuda. The table also shows the aggregate ULR for Alea Europe.

US casualty US casualty Europe

proportional non-proportional
Underwriting year % % %
1995 - 57.0 66.0
1996 101.0 - 74.5
1997 - - 91.3
1998 194 76.4 107.7
1999 159.1 122.7 136.9
2000 121.2 173.8 96.5
2001 81.1 118.2 80.2
2002 711 94.2 73.8
2003 63.6 67.4 51.6
2004 60.6 59.5 51.6
2005 71.9 718 70.0

Note 25 to the financial statements presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim cost for
policies underwritten in a given year. This gives an indication of the accuracy of the Group's estimation
technique for ultimate claims payments.

If the gross claims reserve carried in the balance sheet moved by 1% the impact on the income statement
would be a change in profit before tax of $19.6 million (31 December 2005: $25.3 million) on an
undiscounted basis.

investment and credit risk

Investment risk
The Group’s investment strategy is based on a high quality diversified portfolio of liquid investment grade
fixed income securities as a method of preserving equity capital and prompt claim payment capability.

The Group’'s invested assets are subject to interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk is concentrated
in the US and Europe and is sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary polices and
domestic and international economic and political conditions. Based on invested assets at external
managers of $1,733 million as at 31 December 2006, a 100 basis point increase/decrease in interest rates
across the yield curve would result in an approximate $29.6 million unrealised loss/profit respectively.
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Investment and credit risk (continued)

Investment risk {continued)

The Group uses external investment managers to invest its assets. The Group’s Investment Committee
establishes investment policies and creates guidelines for external investment managers. These guidelines
specify criteria on the overall credit quality and liquidity characteristics of the portfolio and include limitations
on the size of certain holdings as well as restrictions on purchasing certain types of securities.

Of total invested assets $1,733 million is managed by third-party fund managers with the asset mix shown
below. The remaining invested assets of $89 million include predominantly mutual funds invested in fixed
income securities.

Asset class 31 December 2006 31 December 2005

in% in %
US government 21 25
US mortgage 16 24
EU and Switzerland government and corporate 11 16
US corporate 4 11
US municipalities 1 3
Asset backed securities 31 6
Canadian government and provinces 3 2
Cash and other 13 13

100 100

Financial and insurance liabilities risk
The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk on its insurance reserves and floating rate borrowings.

Where appropriate, reserves are discounted in accordance with existing UK GAAP as permitted by IFRS 4.
Discount rates are based on the expected future cash flow derived from assets established for the payment
of reserves. The Group discounts loss reserves for certain business with a mean term to ultimate claims
settlement in excess of four years. The majority of such discount applies to casualty business.

The Group discount rate used is based on the relevant average investment return of the last five years. A
reduction of 0.1% would reduce the net discount in the balance sheet by approximately $2.1 million.

The Group has $120 million of trust preferred securities in issue. These securities provide for a preferred
dividend at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 285 basis points.

The three year bank term loan of $150 million and the $50 million revolving loan currently carry an interest

margin of 120 basis points over LIBOR, which is adjustable based upon the Standard and Poor's debt
ratings for Alea.
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Investment and credit risk (continued)

Credit risk

When the Group was underwriting, it purchased reinsurance to manage its catastrophe exposure and
mitigate insurance risk. However, the ceding of insurance risk exposes the Group to credit risk fromi its
reinsurers and retrocessionaires.

In designing the reinsurance programme the Group took account of the risk assessment, the financial
strength of reinsurance counterparties, the benefits to shareholders of capital efficiency and reduced
volatility, and the cost of reinsurance protection.

When underwriting, the Group purchased retrocessional reinsurance to improve the extent to which it could
manage risk exposures, protect against catastrophic losses, access additional underwriting capacity and
stabilise financial ratios.

The Group selected its reinsurers and retrocessionaires based on price and credit quality and continues to
monitor them closely over time. It also sought to diversify its business among reinsurers and
retrocessionaires and required collateral where deemed prudent to do so. Thus, the use of maximum limits
for credit exposure to any one counter party was an effective method for mitigating credit risk.

The Group required that at the time of purchase all reinsurers and retrocessionaires had a minimum credit
rating of A-, unless high quality collateral is provided.

The following table shows the reinsurance assets carried on the balance sheet net of collateral, split by the
credit rating of the counter party group to which each reinsurer or retrocessionaire belongs and excludes
the aggregate stop loss policies purchased by the Group:

Credit Rtingof rinsurance counter pary , FeSUrnea s Rt e

in % in%
AAA 5 8
AA 65 64
A 24 24
BBB - 1
BB - -
B - -
Unrated 6 3
Total 100 100

The aggregate stop loss policies purchased by the Group are collateralised as follows:

Amount Net
31 December 2006 in $'million recoverable Discount amount Collateral
OPL contract 59.4 - 59.4 46.1
Max Re contract 240.2 {7.7) 232.5 240.2
Amount Net
31 December 2005 in $’'million recoverable Discount amount Collateral
OPL contract 63.6 - 63.6 47 .4
Max Re contract 279.7 (11.3) 268.4 279.7
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Investment and credit risk (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

Additionally, the Group is subject to credit risk in respect of third party entities in which the Group holds debt
securities issued by those companies. As a consequence of the established investment policies and in
order to mitigate investment risk, all of the Group's fixed income portfolio was rated A or better and 93.7%
was rated AA or better by either Standard & Poor's or Moody's. The portfolio had a weighted average rating
of AAA based on ratings assigned by Standard & Poor's or Moody’s. Other than with respect to US,
Canadian and European Unian government and agency securities, the Group's investment guidelines limit
its aggregate exposure to any single issuer to 5% of its portfolio. All securities must be rated A or better at
the time of purchase and the weighted average rating requirement of the Group's portfolio is AAA. There
were no investment write-offs in either 2005 or 2006. The following table illustrates the split of total debt
securities by rating of investee.

Credit Rating of investee Debt security investment Debt security investment
as at 31 December 2006 as at 31 December 2005

in % in %

AAA [ US Government or equivalent 82.1 85.0
AA 116 10.8
A 6.3 4.2
Total 100.0 100.0

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s largest aggregate exposure to any single issuer other than with respect
to the United States, Canadian and European government and agency securities was $27.2 million {31
December 2005: $45.4 million) in respect of General Electric Corporation and various subsidiary
companies.

Depending upon the duration of the liabilities supported by a particular portfolio, the Group's portfolio
investment duration targets may range from one to three years. The duration of an investment is based on
the maturity of the security and also reflects the payment of interest and the possibility of early principal
payment of such security. The Group seeks to utilise investment benchmarks that reflect this duration
target. The Investment Committee periodically revises the Group’s investment benchmarks based on
business and economic factors including the average duration of the Group’s potential liabilities. At 31
December 2006, the Group's investment portfolio had an effective duration of 1.7 years (31 December
2005: 2.9 years). The Group has shortened duration targets on its investment portfolios to ensure that
sufficient liquidity will be available to execute the commutation strategy and to reflect the greater uncertainty
now inherent in the duration of its liabilities with this commutation strategy.

Financial risk
The Group is subject to several types of financial risk. The most significant of these is the risk that at any
given date, the proceeds from realising the financial assets of the Group may be insufficient to meet the

financial obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The Group is also exposed to risk as a result of
changes in foreign currency and interest rates. Another significant risk relates to the liquidity of the Group.
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4 Analysis of risk (continued)

Financial risk {continued)

Asset and liability mismatch risk

In order to ensure that adequate liquid resources are available to fund insurance liability cash outfiows
when they fall due, the Group’s practice is to invest in assets matching the currency and duration of the
expected related liabilities.

Currency risk

The Group reports its results in US Dollars and accordingly, to the extent that shareholders’ funds are
invested in assets denominated in currencies other than US Dollars, exchange gains or losses may arise on
transiation.

The Group controls its currency risk by investing in assets that match the currency in which it expects
related liabilities to be paid and by investing the majority of assets backing sharehotder funds in US Dollars.

As at 31 December 2006 the Group estimates that its net exposure to US Dollars equals 89% of
shareholders’ funds. Net exposure to Canadian dollars is estimated at 4%, to Sterling at 3%, to other
currencies at -1% and net exposure to Euro, Scandinavian currencies and Swiss Franc grouped together at
5% of shareholders’ funds. These currencies are grouped together for currency management purposes due
to the high level of correlation they have historically experienced relative to each other in comparison to
their much lower correlation with the US Dollar. A positive percentage arises when assets exceed liabilities
denominated in that currency while a negative percentage arises when liabilities exceed assets.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that obligations cannot be met as they become due as a consequence of not
being able to readily realise assets to meet these obligations.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s holding company had in place a $150.0 million bank term loan and
$50.0 million credit revolver. Under the terms of the Group's bank credit agreement these fall due for
repayment in September 2007. Before the Group's credit rating downgrade in September 2005 the Group
paid interest of LIBOR plus 90 basis points on these borrowings. Following downgrade the margin
increased by 30 basis points to 120 basis points. The term loan and revolver rank equally. These
arrangements are subject to two financial covenants which require that the Group maintains a minimum
adjusted consolidated tangible net worth and a minimum debt-to-total-capitalisation ratio. If the Group were
to breach either one of these covenants, the lenders would have the right to demand early repayment of
these loans in advance of the scheduled repayment date of September 2007. The availability to the holding
company of funds to repay the loans depends on insurance subsidiaries obtaining regutatory approval to
make intra-group distributions or loans. The Group is in an ongoing dialogue with the lending bank
syndicate regarding the Group's business outlook and strategy and will work closely with the syndicate to
manage any future issues should they arise. For more detail please see Note 2 (Basis of preparation —
going concern basis) to the financial statements.

In December 2004 and January 2005, the Group issued a total of $120.0 million of hybrid trust preferred
securities. These securities were issued through trusts established by Alea Hoildings US Company a
subsidiary of the Group holding company. The margin on these securities was unaffected by the credit
rating downgrades and remain at LIBOR plus 285 basis points. The securities have a fixed maturity of 30
years, are callable after five years, and allow for a deferral of quarterly coupons for up to five years.
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5 Net realised (losses)/gains on sale of renewal rights

Alea London Alea North Alea Europe Total
Limited America Limited
Insurance
Company
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Year ended 31 December 2006 (800) (5,164) 944 (5,020)
Year ended 31 December 2005 8,000 47,000 6,079 61,079

The Group completed three renewal rights transactions in the fourth quarter of 2005. These were
accounted for as net realised gains on sale of renewal rights of $61.1 million, which was recognised in the
year ended 31 December 2005, and represented the Directors’ valuation at fair vatue of the business sold.
In determining the fair market value of renewal rights sales, the Board considered the prior production and
growth of the businesses sold, external projections and a recent assessment of the businesses sold. The
fair market value of the renewal rights is regularly evaluated by the Board based on available data.

A charge of $5.0 million has been recognised in the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 reflecting a
necessary change to the fair vafue which was based on the latest financial data available. These amounts
reflect the discounted estimated future cash flows arising from specified percentages of applicable
commissionable premiums written over the applicable period in accordance with sale contracts.

The gains were calculated as the fair value of consideration receivable ($56.1 million). The Group has
received payments to date of $20.9 million. The remaining balance of $35.2 million is included within loans
and receivables including insurance receivables. The non-current portion of the receivable is $33.7 million.

These amounts represent the Directors’ best estimates of the risk adjusted future receipts discounted at
4.5%. These receipts are dependent upon the future levels of business generated on renewal in relation to
the rights sold over differing time periods as specified in the sale contracts.

The key data is:

Alea London Alea North Alea Europe
Limited America Limited

Insurance

Company
2005 Premium of business sold % millions 167 405 252

Estimated premium to be received

during contract period % millions 144 1,508 86
Contract period years 2 5 1
Best estimate of receipts % millions 7 42 7
Contractual maximum sales proceeds $ millions 30 75 30
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6 Restructuring costs

In 2005, the Group anncunced its intention to run-off all remaining property and casualty business. Those
fixed assets not subject to renewal rights agreements and not required for the run-off operations have been
written down to their residual value. Redundancy costs have been incurred in Connecticut. A restructuring
provision has been established for employees in London, Basel and Zug. This provision includes estimated
expenses for future redundancy payments for employees who cannot be redeployed in the new structure.
The provision also contains estimated expenses with regards to onercus contracts. Onerous contracts are
operating leases in respect of any premises that are expected to be vacated as part of the restructuring.
The provision was established based on a run-off plan approved by the Board of Directors. Other costs are
included in the claims handling provisions.

Year ended 31 December 2006
AleaUK AleaUS Alea Europe Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision
established based on run-off plan ' 4135 2,295 - 6430
Reversal of estimated restructuring provision due to - - (2,843) (2,843)
redundancies in other entities ’
Reversal of estimated restructuring provision related to - (2,500) - (2,500}
onerous contracts
Total restructuring costs 4,135 {205) (2,843) 1,087

' in order to execute the run-off plan, the Group reassessed where centres of competency should be
located geographically. This resulted in revisions being made to the locations of where staff were retained
and consequently additional severance payments were incurred by Alea London and Alea North America
whilst Alea Europe was able to reverse an element of the restructuring provision previously established.

2 Restructuring costs also include a credit of $2.5 million which results from Alea North America’s sublease

of its empty offices in Wilton and a resulting reversal of part of the previously recognised provision for
onerous contracts.
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6 Restructuring costs (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2005

Alea London  Alea North Alea Europe Total
America
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment (Note 18) 69 1,049 527 1,645
Impairment loss recognised in respect of licences
(Note 19) 366 933 - 1,299
Redundancy costs incurred - 1,157 - 1,157
Estimated restructuring costs ° 6,032 4,769 7,452 18,253
Total restructuring costs 6,467 7,908 7,979 22,354
' The estimated restructuring costs can be further analysed as follows:
Alea London  Alea North Alea Europe Total
America
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Redundancy provision 3,322 - 6,988 10,310
Onerous contracts 2,710 4,769 464 7,943
Estimated restructuring costs 6,032 4,769 7,452 18,253
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Segmental information

Primary segment information - operating results by operating segment

The Group managed and conducted its business through four principal operating segments representing
London market business, North American business including altemative risk transfer and reinsurance,
Continental European reinsurance and financial services - the central investment operation.

The operating result of each of these operating segments before the impact of intra-group quota share

arrangements is shown below.

Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
" London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross Premiums Written 21,247  (102,368) 6,202 - - (74,919)
Revenue
Net insurance premium revenue 129,312 61,973 24,631 - - 215916
Fee income 502 2,641 - - - 3,143
Investment income - - - 94,821 - 94,821
Net realised losses on financial
assets - - - (2,500) - (2,500)
Net realised gains on sale of disposal
group - 4,336 - - - 4,336
Net realised (losses)/gains on sale of
renewal rights (800) {5,164) 944 - - (5.020)
Total revenue 129,014 63,786 25,575 92,321 - 310,696
Expenses
Net insurance claims (85,795) (58,285) (12,612) - - (156,692)
Acquisition costs (38,292) (23,466) (7,534) - - (69,292)
Other operating expenses (18,288) (29,148) (15,032) - (4,087} (66,555)
Restructuring (costs)/releases {4,135) 205 2,843 - - (1,087)
Total expenses (146,510)  (110,694) (32,335) - (4,087) (293,626)
Results of operating activities (17,496) (46,908) (6,760) 92,321 {(4,087) 17,070
Finance costs - - - (24,407) - (24,407)
(Loss)/profit before income tax (17,496) (46,908) {6,760) 67,914 {4,087) (7,337)
Income tax credit - - - - 6,502 6,502
(Loss)/profit for the period {17,496) (46,908) (6,760) 67,914 2,415 (835)
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7 Segmental information {continued)

Primary segment information - operating results by operating segment (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2005 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Grass Premiums Written 247,110 498,547 251,871 - - 997,528
Revanue
Net insurance premium revenue 298,086 550,639 238,017 - - 1,086,742
Fee income 2,814 (152) 344 - - 3,006
Investment income - - - 89,138 - 89,138
Net realised gains on financial
assets - - - 672 - 672
Net realised gains on sale of
renewal rights 8,000 47 000 6,079 - - 61,079
Total revenue 308,900 597,487 244,440 89,810 - 1,240,637
Expenses
Net insurance claims (295,955) (387,534)  (235,780) - - (919,269)
Acquisition costs (95,008)  (189,550) (51,232} - - (335,788)
Other operating expenses (30,804) (29,769) (20,574) - (14,288) (95,435)
Restructuring costs (6,467) (7,908} {7.979) - - (22,354)
Total expenses (428,232) (614,761)  (315,565) - {14,288) (1,372,846)
Results of operating activities (119,332) (17,274) (71,125) 89,810 {14,288) {132,209)
Finance costs - - - (19,892) - {19,892)
{Loss)/profit before income tax (119,332) (17,274) (71,125) 69,918 {14,288) (152,101)
Income tax expense - - - - (26,827) (26,827)
(Loss)/profit for the year (119.332) (17.274) (71,125) 69,918 (41,115) (178,928)
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7 Segmental information {continued)

Primary segment information - operating results by operating segment (continued)

Other segment charges included in the income slatement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non -

London North Europe  Financial allocated  Total
America Services

$°000 $'000 £'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Depreciation (Note 18) 1,912 1,792 438 - - 4,142

Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision _
established based on run-off plan (Note 6) 4135 229 ) ) 6.430

Reversal of estimated restructuring provision due to _ )
redundancies in other enlities (Note 6) ) ) (2,843) (2,843)
Estimated restructuring costs (Note 6) - (2,500) - - - (2,500)
Total restructuring costs 4,135 (205) (2,843) - - 1,087

Year ended 31 December 2005 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non -
Lendon North Europe  Financial allocated Total

America Services

$'000 $£'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Depreciation (Note 18) 2,616 2,435 846 - - 5,897

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant . .
and equipment {Note 6) 69 1.049 527 1,645
Impairment loss recognised in respect of licences {(Note 6) 366 933 - - - 1,299
Redundancy costs - 1,157 - - - 1,157
Estimated restructuring costs 6,032 4,769 7.452 - - 18,253
Total restructuring costs 6,467 7,908 7,979 - - 22354
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7 Segmental information (continued)

Primary segment information - operating resuits by operating segment (continued)

The Group has intra group quota share arrangements between the following legal companies Alea London
Limited, Alea Bermuda Ltd, Alea North America Insurance Company, Alea North America Specialty
insurance Company (collectively Alea US) and Alea Europe Ltd. The impact of intra-group quota share
arrangements on operating result with regards to these legal entities are shown and explained below,

For the year ended 31 December 2006 intra group quota share arrangements comprise a 50% quota share
of certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda and a 70% quota
share of Alea North America to Alea Bermuda. A 35% quota share of Alea London business to Alea Europe
was commuted as at 30 September 2006.

For the year ended 31 December 2005 intra group quota share arrangements comprise of the following: a
35% quota share of Alea London business to Alea Europe, a 50% quota share of certain 2000 and prior
underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda, a 70% quota share of Alea North America
to Alea Bermuda and an intra-group aggregate excess contract from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda.

The effects of all of these arrangements are detailed below:

Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Total
London Bermuda us Europe
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net insurance premium revenue 129,312 4,099 57,874 24631 215,916
Intercompany reinsurance {31,313} 39,345 (39,534) 31,502 -
Net insurance premium revenue after
intercompany reinsurance 97,999 43,444 18,340 56,133 215,916
Underwriting result '
Before intercompany reinsurance (16,697) (21,548) (28,618} (7,704) (74,567)
After intercompany reinsurance (11,886} (23,968) (37,185) (1,528) {74,567)
Year ended 31 December 2005 Alea Alea Alea Alea Total
London Bermuda us Europe
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net insurance premium revenue 298,086 4,991 545,648 238,017 1,086,742
Intercompany reinsurance (105,915) 392,876 {384,340) 97,379 -
Net insurance premium revenue after
intercompany reinsurance 192,171 397,867 161,308 335,396 1,086,742
Underwriting result !
Before intercompany reinsurance (127,332) (64,021) (14,541) (77,204) (283,098)
After intercompany reinsurance (95,618) {124,790) (33,954) (28,736) (283,098)

' Results of operating activities excluding investment income, net realised gains on financial assets, net
realised gains on sale of disposal group and intangible assets and net realised gains on sale of renewal
rights.
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7 Segmental information {continued)

Primary segment information — balance sheet by operating segment

The Group managed and conducted its business through four principal operating segments representing
London market business, North American business including alternative risk transfer and reinsurance,
Continental European reinsurance and financial services - the central investment operation. The balance
sheet of each of these operating segments before the impact of intra-group quota share arrangements is
shown below:

As at 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 1,798 4221 379 - - 6,398
Intangible assets - 8,479 - - - 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 420 37) 3,123 - - 3,506

Financial assets
Equity securities

- available for sale - - - 198 - 198

Debt securities

- available for sale - - - 1,664,341 - 1,664,341
Loans and receivables including
insurance receivables 85,497 103,258 113,965 138,241 - 440,961
Deferred tax assets - - - - 1,154 1,154
Reinsurance contracts 315,180 256,178 292,117 - - 863,475
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 157,220 - 157,220
Total assets 402,895 372,099 409,584 1,960,000 1,154 3,145,732
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 623,259 634,340 683,915 - - 1,941,514
Borrowings - - - 317,267 - 317,267
Provisions 2,139 1,425 1,677 - - 5,241
Other liabilities and charges 5,795 31,677 3,482 - - 40,954
Trade and other payables 118,984 90,631 145,991 - - 355,608
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - -
Current income tax liabilities - - - - 1,009 1,009
Total liabilities 750,177 758,073 835,065 317,267 1,009 2,661,591
Net assets 484,141
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capital 1,738
Other reserves 687,377
Retained loss (204,974)
Total equity 484,141
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7 Segmental information (continued)

Primary segment information — balance sheet by operating segment (continued)

As at 31 December 2005 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 2,962 6,153 793 - - 8,908
Intangible assets - 8,479 - - - 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 41,192 55,853 9,955 - - 107,000
Financial assets

Equity securities

- available for sale - - - 161 - 161

Debt securities

- available for sale - - - 2,205,532 - 2,205,532
Loans and receivables including
insurance receivables 146,724 218,124 204,925 108,385 - 678,158
Deferred tax assets - - - - 997 997
Reinsurance contracts 401,786 365,606 290,247 - - 1,057,639
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 116,962 - 116,962
Total assets 592,664 654,215 505,920 2,431,040 997 4,184 836
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracls 809,114 1,149,558 813,784 - - 2,872,456
Borrowings - - - 316,631 - 316,631
Provisions 5732 4,768 7,062 - - 17,562
Other liabilities and charges 1,483 32,767 2,895 - - 37,145
Trade and other payables 151,564 129,049 167,035 - - 447 648
Deferred 1ax liabilities - - - - 1.878 1,878
Current income tax liabilities - - - - 1,087 1,087
Total liabilities 1,067,893 1,316,142 990,776 316,631 2,965 3,694 407
Net assets 490,429
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capital 1,737
Other reserves 692,831
Retained loss {204,139)
Total equity 490,429
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7 Segmental information (continued)

The capital expenditures are as fcllows:

Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Capital expenditure (Note 18) 473 263 - - - 736
Capital expenditure {Note 18) 1,635 4,376 645 - - 6,656
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7 Segmental information (continued)

Secondary segment information - geographical analysis

The following provides an analysis of gross premiums written by location of insured and by location of legal
entity accepting the risk, and of (loss}Y/profit before tax by legal entity accepting risk.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Geographical analysis of gross premiums written by lacation of insured 2006 2005
$°000 $'000
Europe (267) 281,259
Africa (28) 2,010
Near & Middle East (108) 5,477
Far East 181 5,535
Australia & Oceania (96) 2,817
North America {76,329) 687,973
Latin America 1,728 12,457
{74,919) 997,528

Geographical analysis by location of legal entity

Gross premiums written (Loss)/profit before tax

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bermuda 1,735 5,758 (8,176) (113,722)
Jersey 74 216 (1,606) 1,577
United Kingdom 20,973 247,603 5,958 (77,426)
United States {104,102) 492,789 (24,570} 13,754
Switzerland 6,401 251,162 21,057 23,716
{74,919) 997,528 (7,337} (152,101)

Geographical analysis by location of legal entity

Carrying value of assets

Additions to property, plant

and equipment

Yearended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 1 31 December 31 December

2006 Dece';‘ggsr 2006 2005

$'000 $°'000 $'000 $'000

Bermuda 1,135,396 1,338,645 - 10
Jersey - 42,136 - 44
United Kingdom 659,344 903,366 473 1,591
United States 578,450 959,893 263 4,366
Switzerland 772,542 940,796 - 645
3,145,732 4,184,836 736 6,656
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7 Segmental information (continued)

Secondary Segment information - geographical analysis (continued)

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

Operating equity and shareholders’ equity interests $'000 $'000

Alea Europe Ltd 230,660 212,312

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd ' 226,651 279,821

Alea US 241,491 275,556

Amounts held in Holding Companies 103,703 3,862

Amounts held in non-insurance subsidiaries (1,097) 3,004

Note provided by Alea Europe Ltd to Alea US - 32,505

801,408 807,060

Amounts owed to credit institutions (199,574) (199,006}

Trust preferred securities (117,693) {117,625)

Shareholders' funds attributable to equity interests 484,141 490,429
! The entities wholly owned by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd have net assets as follows:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

$'000 $'000

Alea London Ltd 87,954 84,857

Alea Global Risk Ltd 2 - 11,411

Alea Jersey Ltd 2 - 2,082

2 These entities were liquidated in the fourth Quarter 2006.
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8 Investment income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Financial assets - available for sale:

- Interest income from debt securities 86,537 82,047
Cash and cash equivalents interest income 8,284 7,091
94,821 89,138

9 Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Realised gains on financial assets - available for sale 4,700 8,949
Realised losses on financial assets - available for sale {7,200) (8,277)
{(2,500) 872
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10 Sale of disposal group

Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company

Alea North America Insurance Company (“ANAIC"} sold its Delaware excess and surplus lines carrier, Alea
North America Specialty Insurance Company ("ANASIC"} to Insurance Corporation of Hannover, a member
company of Praetorian Financial Group, Inc. on 29 September 2006. ANAIC received a cash payment of
$34.7 million representing $4 million plus the statutory policyholders’ surplus of ANASIC as at date of sale.

The Group has recognised in its IFRS accounts a net realised gain on the sale of $4.3 million.

On the date of the sale, the Group’s Alea (Bermuda) Ltd affiliate assumed 100% of all business written by
ANASIC prior to the closing date. The obligations under the agreements are supported by a guarantee of

the Company.
As at As at
29 September 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
ASSETS
Deferred acquisition costs 45 91
Financial assets
Debt securities
- available for sale 25,532 35,816
Loans and receivables including insurance receivables 2,853 1,227
Reinsurance contracts 9,487 14,607
Cash and cash equivalents 4477 1,012
Total assets 42,394 52,753
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 11,769 15,063
Other liabilities and charges 177 118
Trade and other payables 58 6,605
Total liabilities 12,004 21,786
Net Assets 30,390 30,967
Net realised gains on sale of disposal group 4,336
Total net consideration 34,726
The total consideration was satisfied in cash.
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration 34,726
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of {4,477)
Total net cash inflow on disposal 30,249
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11 Movement in prior year provision for insurance claims, net of reinsurance

The table below presents amounts included in incurred claims arising from the movement in the prior year
provision for claims outstanding net of reinsurance. An increase is an adverse run-off deviation and a
decrease is a positive run-off deviation to the provision for claims outstanding, net of reinsurance held at the

previous balance sheet date.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

:;':::;ausr:etl(decrease) in claims outstanding net of reinsurance before $'000 $'000
Underwriting years 1999 and prior (3,242) 38,050
Underwriting year 2000 1,465 26,344
Underwriting year 2001 5,164 26,337
Underwriting year 2002 5770 26,598
Underwriting year 2003 {1,465) 4,216
Underwriting year 2004 (26,846) 7,647
Underwriting year 2005 2,209 -
{16,945) 129,192

Claims outstanding net of reinsurance at prior year end before discount 1,546,036 1,211,177
Discount (116,6739) {96,487)
1,429,357 1,114,690
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12 Results of operating activities

Profit/(loss) from operations has been arrived after charging:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4142 5,897
Staff costs (see Note 13) 37,7157 58,334
Auditors' remuneration (see below) 3,283 6,291
A more detailed analysis of auditors' remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Audit services 2,523 2,052
Tax services 18 386
Actuarial and other consulting 742 3,853
Total auditor's remuneration 3,283 6,291
13 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was:
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

Underwriting 14 124
Finance 45 52
Information Technology 19 41
Claims 48 40
Technical Accounts 22 42
Management and administration 30 79

178 378
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13 Staff costs {(continued)

Their aggregate remuneration comprised.:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $'000

Wages and salaries ! 32,524 49,918
Social security costs 2,608 4,416
Other pension costs (see Note 39) 2,625 4,000
37,757 58,334

Wages and salaries include $8.1 million of retention bonuses that were expensed in the year ended 31
December 2006 (2005: $Nil). Severance payments of $12.2 million made in the year ended 31 December
2006 (2005: $1.5 million) are excluded in the table above. Of this $12.2 miltion, $8.6 million was provided
in the restructuring provision established at 31 December 2005 (see Note 27). The remaining $3.6 million
has been charged through the Income Statement in 2006 (see Note 6).

14 Finance costs

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$°000 $°000

Interest on borrowings 22,990 16,344
Other investment expenses 3,288 4,529
Exchange gains on non-functional currencies and transactions losses (1,871) (981)
24,407 19,892
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15 Income tax (credit)/expense

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000

Current tax credit:
UK corporation tax 326 42
Foreign tax (4,934) (208)
Total current tax (4,608) (166)
Deferred tax (Note 23): (1,894) 26,993
Total income tax {credit)/expense {6,502) 26,827

UK corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2005: 30%) of the estimated assessable UK profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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15 Income tax expense {continued)

The tax charge for the periods presented varied from the stated rate of UK corporation tax as explained
below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$°000 $'000
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (7,337) {152,101}
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of UK
corporation tax at 30% (2005; 30%}) (2,201} (45,630)
Factors affecting tax charge:
Adjustment in respect of foreign tax rates 611 33,098
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (884) 98
Overseas and other taxes 973 810
Withholding tax on dividends - 171
Write off deferred tax assets previcusly recognised - 16,991
Deferred tax assel in respect of current year losses not recognised - 23,153
Utilisation of tax losses in respect of which no deferred tax assets
were provided (4,2786) -
Other permanent differences (725) (1,864)
Tax (credit)/charge for the year {6,502) 26,827

In addition to the amount charged to the Income Statement, no deferred tax has been charged to equity in the
year (2005: charge of $1.5 million).

16 Dividends

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$°000 $'000

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December )
2004 of $0.07 per share 12,203
- 12,203
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17 Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Year ended
31 December 2006

Year ended
31 December 2005

Earnings $ $
Ea'rnings for the p!.:rposes of basic eamings per share (835,201) (178,928,407)
being net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: - -
Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share (835,201} (178,928,407}
Number of shares Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 173,738,502 173,013,624
purposes of basic earnings per share ’ '
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
- Share options - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 173,738,502 173,913,624

for the purposes of diluted earnings per share
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18 Property, plant and equipment

Computer Fixtures and Other Total
equipment and  office equipment
software
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 January 2005 30,162 8,188 2,718 41,078
Additions 5,708 948 - 6,656
Exchange difference {2,622) (375) (361) (3,358)
Disposals {7,131) (978) (633) (8,742)
At 31 December 2005 26,117 7,793 1,724 35,634
Additions 705 3 - 736
Exchange difference 2,294 255 120 2,669
Disposals (6,263) (3.481) {131} {9.875)
At 31 December 2006 22,853 4,598 1,713 29,164
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2005 (20,674) (4,526) (2,275) (27,475)
Charge for the year (4,331) (1,480) {86) (5,897)
Impairment loss ' (910) (732) (3) (1,645)
Exchange differences 2,408 318 164 2,890
Eliminated on disposals 4,872 895 634 6,401
At 31 December 2005 (18,635) (5,525) (1,566) (25,726)
Charge for the year (3,778} (336) (28) (4,142)
Exchange differences (1,957) (230) (160) (2,347)
Eliminated on disposals 5,780 3,522 147 9,449
At 31 December 2006 {18,590) {(2,569) {1,607) {22,766)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 4,263 2,029 106 6,398
At 31 December 2005 7,482 2,268 158 9,908

The impairment loss on fixtures and equipment as well as on computer equipment and software arose
in connection with the restructuring following the Group announcement in 2005 regarding the run-off of

all subsidiaries. Please see Note 6.
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19 Intangible assets

Licences
$000

Cost
At 1 January 2005 9,968
Additions -
At 31 December 2005 9,968
Additions -
At 31 December 2006 9,968
Amortisation
At 1 January 2005 (190)
Impairment of asset (1,299}
At 31 December 2005 (1,489)
Impairment of asset -
At 31 December 2006 (1,489)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 8,479
At 31 December 2005 8,479

Capitalised licences represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business in the United States. The
Directors believe these licences have indefinite useful lives. The licences are tested for impairment at
each balance sheet date. At 31 December 2006 the impairment review indicated that the carrying value of
the licenses reflects the recoverable amount and no impairment write down is necessary (31 December
2005: impairment of $1.3 million recognised).
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20 Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition costs

$°000
At 1 January 2005 198,059
Change in year (87,554)
Exchange difference {3,505)
At 31 December 2005 107,000
Change in year {103,718)
Exchange difference 224
At 31 December 2006 3,506
At 31 December 2006 3,506
At 31 December 2005 107,000
At 31 December 2006
Current assels 283
Non-current assets 3,223
3,506
At 31 December 2005
Current assets 103,494
Non-current assets 3,506
107,000
21 Financial assets
As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Available-for-sale investments
- Equity securities 198 161
- Debt securities 1,664,341 2,205,532

The investments included above represent investments in listed equity securities and listed debt securities. The fair

values of these investments are based on quoted market prices.

The current portion of financial assets is $505,265,000 (31 December 2005: $1,159,273,000) the remaining being non-

current.
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21 Financial assets (continued)

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Summary by maturity — Debt securities $'000 % $'000 %
Less than 1 year 661,770 39.8 458,192 20.8
1 year up to 3 years 354,899 213 508,034 23.0
3 years up to 5 years 228,385 13.7 480,236 21.8
5 years up to 10 years 136,633 8.2 235,875 10.7
More than 10 years 282,654 17.0 523,195 237
1,664,341  100.0 2,205,532 100.0
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22 Loans and receivables including insurance receivables

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $'000

Deposits with ceding undertakings 118,558 87,711
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 21,989 33,497
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 143,993 334,846
Amcunts due from reinsurance operations not transferring significant risk 66,293 123,116
Accrued income (1) 49,282 71,830
Other prepayments 2,531 6,080
Other debtors 38,315 21,078
Total loans and receivables including insurance receivables 440,961 678,158
Current asset 63,710 237,198
Non-current asset 377,251 440,960
440,961 678,158

1

the balance sheet date as disclosed in Note 5.

$35.2 million (31 December 2005: $41.9 million) of the renewal rights sales are recorded as accrued income at

Loans and receivables including insurance receivables are recorded on the balance sheet at amortised cost.

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the current and prior reporting period:

Deferred tax assets

Bonus and
US subsidiary penslon accruals
Tax losses and  Depreciation insurance not currently
disclaimed in advance of transaction deductible and
technical capital timing other timing
reserves allowances differences differences Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2005 26,106 974 2,969 337 30,386
{Charged) / credited to the income
statement (22,929) 122 (3,612} {322) (26,741)
(Charged) / credited to equity (net of ) )
transfers to retained earnings) {2.004) 643 (1451)
Exchange differences (1,083) (107 - (M) (1,197}
At 1 January 2006 - 989 - 8 997
(Charged) / credited to the income
statement ) a B (1) 6
Exchange differences - 138 - 3 141
As at 31 December 2006 - 1,154 - - 1,154
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23 Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

US subsidiary

Capital allowances in insurance

advance of transaction timing
depreciation differences Total
$°000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2005 1,626 - 1,626
{Credited)/charged to the income statement (1,626) 1,878 252
At 1 January 2006 - 1,878 1,878
Credited to the income statement - (1.878) (1.878)

As at 31 December 2006 - - .

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$’'000 $°000

Deferred tax assets 1,154 997
Deferred tax liabilities - {1,878)
1,154 (881)

At the balance sheet date the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of $47.8 million (31 December
2005: $45 million) in respect of tax losses carried forward. The assets have not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of $182.6 million (31 December 2005: $184.9
million) available for offset against future profits. Of the losses at 31 December 2006 $24.6 million {31
December 2005: $Nil) relate to the US, $140.5 million (31 December 2005: $137.0 million) relate to the UK
and $17.5 million (31 December 2005: $47.9 million) relate to Switzerland.

The US losses expire in 2026.

In the UK, tax losses are in part carried forward as disclaimed technical reserves. UK losses have no expiry
date. The amounts included within 'Tax losses and disclaimed technical reserves' above are shown net of
deferred tax liabilities in respect of UK equalisation reserves.

Swiss losses expire as follows: $0.3 million in 2007 and $17.2 million in 2008. The figures above do not
include Swiss losses which became available to carry forward in Alea Europe Ltd following the merger of
that company with Alea Group Holdings AG referred to in Note 44,

The deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2006 and as at 31 December 2005 are current assets.
The deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2006 and as at 31 December 2005 are current liabilities.
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23 Deferred income tax (continued)

The deferred income tax (charged) or credited to equity during the year is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $°000

Revaluation reserve’ - 1,420
Hedging and translation reserve’ - (2,871)
- {(1.451)

The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders’ equity that is used to record the difference

between the market value of available for sale investments carried on the balance sheet and the
amortised cost of those assets. Unrealised gains and losses arising when the market value is

compared with the amortised cost of the assets are taken to this reserve.

Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the translation of the Group's assets and

liabilities denominated in functional currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation

reserve. The hedging and translation reserve is a component of shareholders’ equity.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$°000 $'000

Cash at bank and in hand 69,738 69,099
Short-term deposits with credit institutions 87,482 47 863
Total cash and cash equivalents 157,220 116,962

Cash and cash equivalents yielded an effective rate of interest of 5.2% in the year ended 31 December 2006

{31 December 2005: 4.6%).
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25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

Insurance and reinsurance contracts are comprised of the following:

As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,957,249 2,531,928
Discount {105,855) (133,443)
1,851,394 2,398,485
Claims handling provisions 17,823 30,372
Total gross claims outstanding 1,869,217 2,428,857
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts 72,297 443 599
Total insurance contracts 1,941,514 2,872,456
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 299,544 343,312
Discount (7,657) (11,308)
Net aggregate excess reinsurance 291,887 332,004
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 573,216 672,952
Discount {(2,665) (5,455)
Net other reinsurance 570,551 667,497
Total reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 872,760 1,016,264
Discount {10,322} (16,763}
Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding 862,438 999,501
Provision for unearned premiums on reinsurance contracts 1,037 58,138
Total reinsurance contracts 863,475 1,057,639
Undiscounted claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,102,312 1,546,036
Discount (95,533) {116,679)
Claims outstanding net of reinsurance 1,006,779 1,429,357
As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Security held for aggregate excess reinsurance $000 $'000
Deposits received from reinsurers 46,119 47,445
Trust fund and LOC collateral available against aggregate excess contracls 240,182 279,704
Total collateral available against aggregate excess reinsurance recoverable 286,301 327,149
Collateral held in respect of unearned premiums - 13
Total collateral held 286,301 327,162
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25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $'000

Current assets 211,817 194,164
Non-current assets 651,658 863,475
Total reinsurance contracts 863,475 1,057,639
Current liabilities 697,937 930,942
Non-current liabilities 1,243,577 1,941,514
Total insurance contracts 1,941,514 2,872,456

Basis for establishing provision for claims outstanding

Loss reserves for reinsurance business are established based on claims data reported to the Group by
ceding companies supplemented with relevant industry benchmark loss development patterns used to
project the ultimate incurred Joss. Ultimate incurred loss indications are calculated by the Group’s actuaries
using several standard actuarial methodologies including paid and incurred loss development and the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson incurred and paid loss methods.

The Group's actuaries utilise several assumptions in applying each methodology, including loss
development factors, expected loss ratios based on pricing analysis, and actual reported claim frequency
and severity. These reviews and documentation are completed in accordance with professional actuarial
standards appropriate to the jurisdictions where the business is written. The selected assumptions reflect
the actuaries’ judgement based on historical data and experience combined with information concerning
current underwriting, economic, judictal, regulatory and other influences on ultimate claim settlements.

Based on the actuarial indications, the Group selects and records a single point estimate separately for
each line of business for each underwriting year. The single point reserve estimate is management's best
estimate which the Group considers to be one that has an equal likelihood of developing a redundancy or
deficiency as the loss experience matures. On a quarterly basis the Group analyses and records its loss
reserve estimates across over 400 detailed lines of business which reflect class of business, geographic
location, insurance versus reinsurance, proportional versus non-proportional, and treaty versus facuitative
exposures. In addition, a limited number of the Group’s largest contracts are reviewed individually.

During the loss settlement period, additional facts regarding claims are reported. As this occurs it may be
necessary to increase or decrease the unpaid losses and loss expense reserves. The actual final liability
may be significantly different to prior estimates. The Group reviews additional reported claim information on
a monthly basis. Actual claim experience is compared to that expected from the most recent actuarial
reserve review to highlight significant variances. A complete actuarial analysis by detailed line of business
including selection of single point estimates is completed semi-annually and is reviewed by the Group’s
management.
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25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Underwriting year table

1999;;;‘: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Gross
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting
year 3,022,313 367,605 386,762 590,359 821,724 1,092,870 630,215
Cne year later 4,564,137 452 324 396,996 612,137 816,546 990,260 610,599
Two years later 4,710,816 485,269 417,049 611,228 794 346 883,970
Three years later 4,755,187 507,747 441 839 654,210 786,147
Four years later 4,828,948 539,694 440,855 660,908
Five years later 4,874,927 550,212 459,255
Six years later 4,883,595 563,532
Seven years later 4,893,658
Estimate of cumnulative
claims as at 31
December 2006 4,893 658 563,532 459,255 660,908 786,147 883,970 610,599 8,858,069
Cumulative payments
at 31 December 2006 (4,582,791)  (455,004) {360,698) (483,883} (501,328) (507,924) (279.664) (7.175,292)
310,867 104,528 98,557 177,025 284,819 376,046 330,935 1,682,777
Uneamed element of
reserves at 31 - - 52 233 ) 41 (1,707} (1.381)
Decemnber 2006
Eamed non-life
reserves before effect
of discounting as at 31 310,867 104,528 98,609 177,258 284,819 376,087 329,228 1,681,396
December 2006
Life and finite reserves
as at 31 December 275,853
2008
Claims handling
provisions as at 31
December 2006 17,823
Present value of
reserves before
discount recognised in 1,975,072

the balance sheet as at
31 December 2006
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25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Underwriting year table (continued)

1999 and

. 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Total
prior
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Reinsurance recoverable
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting year 557,558 87,617 140,151 176,731 165,184 177,565 144472
One year later 1,544,260 163,700 173,153 196,084 184,701 145792 132,953
Two years later 1,662,449 156,068 177,605 211,944 190,173 137,365
Three years later 1,646,776 149,374 152,152 212,974 182,641
Four years later 1,660,199 136,623 146,574 199,845
Five years later 1,684,626 130,220 157,163
Six years later 1,667,762 130,984
Seven years later 1,669,539
Estimate of cumulative
recoveries 1,669,539 130,984 157,163 199,845 182,641 137,365 132,953 2,610,490
at 31 December 2006 i ! ! ' ' ' ’ e
Cumulative recoveries
received at 31 December 2006 {1.516,740) (106,986) (95,291) (63,578} (59.334) (B4,394) (57,576) (1,983,899)
152,799 23,998 61,872 136,267 123,307 52,971 75,377 626,591
Uneamed element of
reinsurance recoverable at 31
December 2006 - 9 36 62 (13) 49 (229) (86)
Earned net non-life
reinsurance recoverable
before effect of discounting as 152,799 24,007 61,908 136,329 123,294 53,020 75,148 626,505
at 31 December 2006
Life and finite reinsurance
recoverable as at 31
December 2006 246,255
Present value of reinsurance
recoverable before discount
recognised in the balance 872,760

sheet as at 31 December 2006
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25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts {continued)

Underwriting year table (continued)

1999 and
prior

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Total

Net
Estimate of cumulative claims:

At end of underwriting year 2,464,755 279,988 246,611 413,628 656,540 915305 485743

One year later 3,019,877 288624 223843 416,053 631,845 844468 477,646
Two years later 3,048,367 320,201 239444 399284 604,173 746,605

Thres years later 3,108,411 358,373 289,687 441,236 603,506

Four years later 3,168,749 403,071 294 281 461,063

Five years later 3,190,301 419,992 302,092

Six years later 3,215,833 432,548

Seven years later 3,224,119

Estimate of net cumulative

cluims at 31 Decomber 2006 3224119 432548 302,092 461,063 603506 746,605 477,646 6,247,579

Net cumulative payments

at 31 December 2006 (3,066,051} (352,018) (265,407) (420,305) (441,994) (423,530) (222,088) (5,191,383)

168,068 80,530 36,685 40,758 161,512 323,075 255,558 1,056,186

Uneamed element of reserves
at 31 December 2006 - 9 16 171 13 (8) {1,478} (1,295)

Eamed net non-life reserves
before effect of discounting as

at 31 December 2008 158,068 80,521 36,701 40,929 161,525 323,067 254,080 1,054,891

Net life and finite reserves as

at 31 December 2006 29,598
Claims handling provisions
as at 31 December 2006 17,823

Present value of nel reserves

before discount recognised in

the balance sheet as at 31 1,102,312
December 2006

(1) In June 2000 the Group added a UK insurance and reinsurance license through the acquisition of The Impenal Fire And Marine Company Limited
(‘Imperial') {now called Alea London Limited). In acquiring this entity, the Group assumed insurance and reinsurance liabilities relating to 1999 and prior
underwriting years written by Imperial. This explains the significant increase in cumulative claims in respect of 1999 and prior underwriting years that
occurs in the table above between 31 December 1999 and 31 December 2000. The increase in gross cumulativa claims in respect of 1999 and prior as a
result of the acquisition was $1,620.2 million and the increase in ceded cumulative claims was $897.7 million,

(2) The underwriting year development table above includes all cumulative claims in respect of underwriting years 1987 to 2005. It also includes 1986 and
prior underwriting year claims paid in calendar years 1999 to 2008, and the reserves in respect of 1986 and prior at each balance sheet date from 1999 to
2006,

(3) The insurance and reinsurance claims outstanding carried in the balance shest of the Group include gross and ceded amounts in respect of Canadian
structured settlement life business. The gross and ceded amounts match exactly, fo leave no net liability. As these balances relate to life business they
are excluded from the underwriting year development table. Consequently, in order to achieve reconciliation to the balance sheet gross and ceded claims
outstanding, they are added back in the table above. The amount as at 31 December 2006 was $246.2 million.
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26 Borrowings

The borrowings are repayable as follows: As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $'000

On demand or within one year 200,000 -

In the second year - 200,000

In the third to fifth years inclusive - -

After five years 120,000 120,000

Total borrowings 320,000 320,000

Less: Capitalised debt raising expenses (2,733) {3,369)

Total borrowings net of capitalised expenses 317,267 316,631
Analysis of borrowings:

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $'000

Amounts owed to credit institutions 200,000 200,000

Trust preferred securities 120,000 120,000

Total borrowings 320,000 320,000

All borrowings are recorded at fair value.
Amounts owed to credit institutions

The three-year bank term loan of $200.0 million and the $50.0 million revolver currently carry an interest
margin of 120 basis points, which is adjustable based upon the Standard and Poor's debt ratings for Alea.
The $50.0 million revolver facility is additionally subject to a commitment fee of 40% of the applicable
margin. The term loan was used to repay the pre-existing financing facilities with the balance being used for
general corporate expenses.

In February 2005, the $50.0 million revolver was fully drawn and the funds were used to make a voluntary
prepayment of $50.0 million under the $200.0 million term loan. This prepayment was accompanied by an
amendment which increased the financial flexibility of Alea under this financing.

The loan imposes restrictive covenants including tangible minimum equity, debt-to-capitalisation ratio
limitations, limitations on the granting of liens, payment of dividends, other dispositions of assets, increased
indebtedness and distribution of assets. Under the terms of the Group's bank credit agreement these
borrowings fall due for repayment in September 2007.

Trust preferred securities

In December 2004, the Group issued $100.0 million of trust preferred securities and had in place a
commitment for an additional $20.0 million of trust preferred securities issued in January 2005. These
securities (issued from three Delaware trusts established by Alea Holdings US Company, of which one trust
was established in January 2005) provide for a preferred dividend at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 285
basis points. These securities allow for the postponement of preferred dividends under certain
circumstances for up to five years. These securities carry no financial covenants and no cross default
covenants, have a fixed maturity of 30 years, and are callable after five years.
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27 Provisions

Restructuring

Provision

$'000

At 31 December 2004 -
Additional provision in the period (see Note 6) 18,253
Exchange difference (691)
At 31 December 2005 17,562
Utilisation of provision due to onerous contracts {(2,052)
Reversal of provision due to onerous contracts ' {2,500)
Utilisation of provision due to severance payments (8,638)
Exchange difference 869
At 31 December 2006 5,241

1

As a result of Alea North America's subfease of its empty offices in Wilton a reversal of the previously

recognised provision for onerous contracts has been made. The reversal is part of the restructuring

costs presented in the income statement.

For further details regarding the restructuring costs see Note 6.

At 31 December 2006

Current liabilities 3,433
Non-current liabilities 1,808
5,241

At 31 December 2005
Current liabilities 9,821
Non-current liabilities 7.741
17,562
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28 Other liabilities and charges

Deferred Other accruals and Total

reinsurance deferred income '

commission

$'000 $°000 $°000
At 31 December 2004 3,459 27,680 31,139
Change in the period (97) 5,272 5175
Exchange difference - 831 831
At 31 December 2005 3,362 33,783 37,145
Change in the period {516) 4,782 4,266
Exchange difference - (457) (457)
At 31 December 2006 2,846 38,108 40,954

' Includes regulatory levies of $7.9 million for Alea US.

At 31 December 2006

Current liabilities 38,545
Non-current liabilities 2,409
40,954

At 31 December 2005

Current liabilities ' 34,299
Non-current liabilities 2,846
' 37,145

29 Trade and other payables

As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$000 $'000

Insurance balance payable 7,109 49,470
Reinsurance balance payable 177,726 138,986
Deposits received from reinsurers 52,847 68,813
Reserves withheld creditors 47,004 52,009
Liabilities from reinsurance operations not transferring significant risk 67,342 124,925
Other taxes and social securities : 3,578 13,445
Total trade and other payables 355,606 447,648
Current assels 54,380 92,041
Non-current assets 301,226 355,807
355,606 447,648
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30 Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to aquity holders of the Company

Share Share  Capital Revaluation Hedging Retained Share Non- Total
capital premium reserve reserve ' and earnings based  distributable
translation payment reserve
reserves - reserve
$'000 $°000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at 1 January 2006 1737 629,311 75,381 {12,671) {176) (204,139) 986 . 490,429
Issuance of shares 1 357 (358) -
Loss of the period (835) (835)
Revaijuation on available for
sale investments - gross (11,026) (11.026)
Revaluation on avaiiable _ .
for sale investments - tax
Movement in share based
payment reserve 92 92
Translation gains - gross 5,481 5,481
Translation gains - tax - -
As at 31 December 2006 1,738 629,668 75,381 (23,697) 5,305 {(204,974) 720 - 484,141
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Share Capital  Revaluation Hedging Retalned Share Non- Total
capltal premium reserve resarva ' and  earnings based distributable
translation payment reserve
rosorvas * reserve
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

As at 1 January 2005 1,744 631,439 75,381 12,502 7.629 (17,376) 823 4,368 716,510
Repurchase of shares (7) (2,128} (2,135)
Lass of the period {178,928} (178,928)
Revaluation on avallable for
sale investments - gross {26,593} (26,593)
Revaluation on avallable for
sale investments - tax 1,420 1,420
Movement in share based
payment reserve 163 163
Transfer from non-
distributable reserve - gross 6,240 (6.240) -
Transfer to non-
distributable reserve - tax (1.872) 1,872 -
Translation losses - gross {4,934) (4,934)
Translation losses - tax 2,871) (2.871)
Dividend paid (12.203) (12,203)
As at 31 December 2005 1,737 629,311 75,381 (12,671) (176)  {204,139) 986 - 490,429

The revaluation reserve is a component of shareho!ders’ equity that is used to record the difference between the market value of
available for sale investments carried on the balance sheset and the amortised cost of those assets. Unrealised gains and losses
arising when the market value is compared with the amortised cost of the assets are taken to this raserve.

Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the translation of the Group's assets and liabilites denominated in
functional currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve,

The non-distributable reserve represents a statutory reserve established by Alea London Limited in accordance with UK
Company Law for the purposes of mitigating exceptionafly high loss ratios in fulure years as required by Schedule SA of the
Companies Act.

100




ALLCA ORWVUF ANNUVAL RILPWVILNT 2UVO

Year ended 31 December 2006
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31 Share capital

As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Number Number
'000s $'000 '000s $'000
Authorised:
Common shares of $0.01 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
Total authorised 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Common shares of $0.01 173,788 1,738 173,726 1,737
Total allotted, called up share capital and fully paid 173,788 1,738 173,726 1,737
32 Share capital movement
Number
‘000s $'000
At 31 December 2005 173,726 1,737
Cancellation of shares {16) -
Issuance of Shares (Restricted Share Units - RSU) 77 1
At 31 December 2006 173,787 1,738
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 Stock options and restricted shares

Bermuda Plan

Alea Group Holdings AG (a former Group company which was merged with Alea Europe Ltd in 2005) had
in place a stock purchase and option plan for key employees and advisors known as the 1998 Amended
and Restated Stock Option Plan for Key Employees and Subsidiaries (the “Swiss Plan”). The Company
adopted a 2002 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
as amended (the "Bermuda Plan™), in connection with the re-domiciling of the ultimate parent company of
the Group to Bermuda and all awards under the Swiss Plan are now governed by the terms of the Bermuda
Plan. The terms of the Bermuda Plan are substantially similar to the terms of the Swiss Plan. All Alea
Group Holdings AG non-voting participation shares and options were exchanged for common shares and
options in connection with an equity exchange offer that was completed on 3 April 2002. In totai,
15,000,000 common shares are authorised for use under the Bermuda Plan.

The exercise price of the options will be the fair market value of the common shares on the grant date.
Generally, the options vest rateably over a five-year period except in the case of performance options
where vesting is affected by attainment of certain pre-approved financial targets. The exercisability of the
options accelerates upon a change of control of the Group. Options expire and are no longer exercisable
on the tenth anniversary or in certain circumsiances at the end of the three month period following such
tenth anniversary of the grant date. The expiration of the options can accelerate due to termination of
employment. Certain options granted contain shortened expiration and vesting periods.

The terms of the Company's common shares and the exercise price of the options to acquire company
common shares on the purchase/grant date were determined by the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with the terms of the Bermuda Plan. The Bermuda Plan was terminated as to future grants with
effect from 19 November 2003.

Executive Plan

The Company's shareholders have adopted the Alea Executive Option and Stock Plan and the Alea
Sharesave Plan ("Executive Plan"). The Executive Plan provides for the grant of time and performance
options, restricted stock units and share savings for employees. The exercise price of options granted shall
not be less than the middle market quotation for the Company's shares on the dealing day preceding the
date of grant. The number of common shares granted in any period under all of the Company's employee
share schemes (excluding shares issuable on exercise of options granted prior to 19 November 2003) may
not exceed 10% of the Company's issued ordinary share capital. Generally, the vesting period of an option
granted under the Executive Plan is subject to the discretion of the Board {or a committee thereof) provided
that vesting for certain tax qualified options may not be earlier than 3 years or more than 10 years after the
date of grant and unless any relevant performance conditions have been satisfied.

Other

The company has issued to Fisher Capital Corp. LLC certain opticns to acquire common shares, which are
fully vested and are exercisable within 15 years of the date of grant. In connection with a consulting
agreement, the company has issued restricted shares which are fully vested to Richard Delaney, a former
director. These shares and options were not granted pursuant to either Plan.

Transactions involving common share options are disclosed in Note 34.
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34 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option plan
The Group plans provide for a grant price equal to the average quoted market price of the Group shares
on the date of grant. The vesting period is generally 5 years. If the options remain unexercised after a
pericd of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are typically contractually forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group subject to certain exercise periods that apply to vested options and to
certain options granted in 2005 pursuant to the Executive Plan.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Number of exercise

options price in § options pricein $

Options outstanding at beginning of year 9,383,428 3.65 11,912,640 3.76
Options granted during the year - - 1,593,520 3.21
Options forfeited during the year {4,694,752) 3.95 (4,122,732) 3.54
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options which expired during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at end of year 4,688,676 3.68 9,383,428 3.65
Options exercisable at end of year 3,153,866 3.59 5,827,708 3.52

No options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding at 31 December 2006 had a
weighted average exercise price of $3.68 (2005: $3.65), and the weighted average remaining contractual
lives of those options are as follows.

Year ended
31 December 2006

Year ended

31 December 2005

Woeighted Waighted Number of
Average Number of Average share
exercisR:n?i‘:::sf Remaining  share options exe rcIsReangi?::; Remaining options
p Contractual outstanding P Contractual outstandin
Life Life g
Cptions outstanding at end of year
divided into meaningfut ranges
Share options issued in respect of
Alea Group Holdings AG after $3.22 5322 2.04 142,660 $3.22 -§3.22 an 298,000
repricing
Alea Group Moldings (Bermuda)
Limited options granted pre - IPO $3.22  -$4.30 4.27 2,840,480 $3.22 -84.30 5.51 6,119,628
Alea Group Holdings {(Bermuda)
Limited options granted post - IPO $3.21 -$4.31 7.95 1,705,536 $3.21 -$4.31 8.66 2,965,800
All options $3.21 -$4.31 5.54 4,688,676 $3.2% -$4.31 6.43 9,383,428
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34 Share-based payments {continued)

Year ended
31 Decemher 2006 !

Year ended
31 December 2005

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the
year as determined at measurement date not applicable

0.87

In order to incorporate the effects of expected early exercise, a binomial mode! was used to value the share options granted during

the year. The inputs into that model in respect of options granted during the year are as follows:

Weighted average share price not applicable
Weighted average exercise price not applicable
Weighted average expected volatility not applicable
Weighted average option life not applicable
Weighted average expecled dividends not applicable
Weighted average risk-free interest rate not applicable

There were no options granted in 2006.

3.55
3.48
23%

10 years
2.54%

4.80%

For share options granted post - PO, the expected volatility was determined by calcutating the historical
volatility of the Group's share price since the IPO. For all earlier grants of share options, a volatility rate of

3% was selected for use in fair valuing the options.

The Group recognised the following total expenses and repurchases in respect of equity-settled share

based payment transactions:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
‘000 ‘000

Total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based payment
transactions that were recognised immediately as an expense - {all are equity {86) 314

seftled)

RSU expense charged in year 178 139
Cash repurchases of vested options held by leavers - {290)
92 163
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35 Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000
Loss for the year {835) (178,928)
Adjustments for:
- tax (credit)expense (6,502} 26,827
- depreciation 4,142 5,897
- impairmgnt loss recognised in respect of property, plant . 1645
and equipment (Note 18) '
- impairment loss recognised in respect of licenses (Note 19} - 1,299
Net cash flows for the period transferred to investing activities (85,429) (92,123)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 305 64
Net realised gains on sale of disposal Group {4,336) -
Debt interest expense 22,990 16,344
Loss/(profit) on foreign exchange 1,500 (2,6086)
Change in operating assets and liabilities {excluding the effect of acquisitions and
exchange differences on consolidation)
Net (decrease)/increase in insurance liabilities (979,468) 100,806
Net decrease/(increase} in reinsurance assets 212,680 (57,440)
Net decrease in loans and receivables 364,831 266,719
Net (decrease)/increase in other operating liabilities (116,968) 25,786
Net movement in share based payment reserve 91 163
Cash {used in)/generated from operations (586,999) 114,453
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36 Contingent liabilities

Structured settlements

The Group, through the Canadian branch of Alea Europe Ltd, has assumed ownership of certain structured
settlements and has purchased annuities from life assurers to provide fixed and recurring payments to
those underlying claimants. As a result of these arrangements, the Group is exposed to a credit risk to the
extent that any of these insurers are unable to meet their obligations under the structured settlements. This
risk is viewed by the Directors as being remote as the annuities are fully funded and the Group has only
purchased annuities from Canadian insurers with a financial stability of AA or higher (Standard & Poor’s).
The Canadian branch is in run-off and the branch discontinued accepting assignments of annuities in
August 2001.

In the event of all the relevant life insurers being unable to meet their obligations under the structured
setttements, at 31 December 2006, the total exposure, net of amounts that may be recoverable from the
Compensation Corporation of Canada (a Canadian industry-backed compensation scheme), is estimated to
be 43 million Canadian Dollars ($37 million} and the maximum in relation to any one insurer 20 million
Canadian Dollars ($17 million).

Subpoenas and requests for information/regulatory matters

The US domiciled insurance members of the Group received certain subpoenas and information requests
with respect to the ongoing investigations by various regulators and governmental authorities relating to
industry-wide investigations into US producer compensation practices and arrangements. In November 2004,
Alea North America Insurance Company ("ANAIC") received a subpoena from the Attomey General of New
York and, together with Alea North America Speciality Insurance Company (“ANASIC"), received inquiries
from the insurance departments of Delaware and North Carolina. No allegations of wrongdecing have been
made against ANAIC, ANASIC nor any of their employees, nor does the Group have reason to believe that
any of them are specific targets of any investigation.

The Group has cooperated fully with these inquiries. After concluding their intermal investigations in
connection with these matters, these member companies have reported to these regulatory authorities that
they have identified no transactions or information causing concern, nor are they aware of any improper
conduct.

Cenrtain members of the Group have received subpoenas and information requests with respect to finite
reinsurance from the US Securities and Exchange Commission, the FSA, the Australian Prudential
Regulatory Authority and the Florida and Delaware state insurance authorities.

The Group has cooperated or is cooperating fully with each authority from which it has received an inquiry
and is aware of no improper conduct.

These industry-wide investigations, including certain of the investigations to which the Group is a party, are
ongoing and it is not possible to predict the impact that these investigations, or any enquiries specific to the
Group, may have on the Group's current or future business and financial results. Moreover, there can be no
assurance that further investigations will not be initiated or reopened in the future.

In connection with a periodic market conduct examination, the California Department of Insurance has
disputed certain fees collected from policyholders by two agents of one of the Group’'s subsidiaries. The
Group disagrees with the Department's position, but is cooperating to audit these fee arrangements. The
agreements with the agents involved have been terminated. it is not possible to predict the impact of this
dispute on the Group’s financial results.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 Contingent liabilities (continued)

Company contingent liabilities

In 2002 the Company entered into a top down guarantee with each of the Group’s rated insurance
operating entities. These guarantees were in addition to the pre-existing guarantees already in place
between certain subsidiaries of the Group. Subject to applicable corporate and regulatory requirements, the
top down guarantees required that the Company make funds available to the insurance operating entities to
allow the entities to fulfil their insurance or reinsurance obligations to the client/customer incurred while the
guarantee remained in effect. The Group terminated all top down and other intra-Group guarantees
effective 30 November 2006.

37 Exposure to specific credit risk

Exposure to Lumbermens

In connection with the Group's acquisition of the Equus Re reinsurance division of Lumbermens on 3
December 1999, Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens entered into a 100% quota share reinsurance of the
Lumbermens business written by Equus Re through 3 December 1899 (namely, business written by Equus
Re prior to the Group's acquisition of the Equus Re operations). Lumbermens, in turn, provides stop loss
reinsurance to Alea (Bermuda) Ltd for losses in excess of a 75% paid loss ratio on the same business
incepting prior to 1 October 1999 (the 'Protected Business’). In addition to the Protected Business, the
parties agreed that the Group would write new and renewal business on behalf of Lumbermens (as the
reinsurer) up to 31 December 2001, which business is ceded by a 100% quota share reinsurance to Alea
(Bermuda) Ltd (the ‘Fronted Business’). Concurrent with these arrangements, Lumbermens retained Alea
North America Company ("“ANAC") as its agent to adjust and pay claims and collect premiums for both the
Protected Business and the Fronted Business.

The respective obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens noted above are subject to contractual
mutual offset provisions under the reinsurance agreements and as permitted under lllinois law. Further, in
respect of the Protected Business, Lumbermens is contractually required to fund losses on its own behalf
once the 75% paid loss ratio is met. The Group’s balance sheet therefore, records (i) no net balance due
from Lumbermens under the Protected Business, as the 75% paid loss ratio was met in late December
2003 (specifically, $64.35 million due to and from Lumbermens), and (ii) as at 31 December 2006, an
aggregate balance due to Lumbermens under the Fronted Business and in respect of business written by
Equus Re between 1 October 1999 and 3 December 1999 of $50.4 million, after taking credit for amounts
treated as paid for accounting purposes.

As is required for credit for reinsurance purposes when cessions are made to non-US licensed reinsurers,
Alea (Bermuda) Ltd must collateralise its obligations to Lumbermens. Pursuant to contract, the amount of
posted collateral is required to equa! 120% of the estimated loss reserves, which based on the above year-
end balance due from Alea (Bermuda) Ltd would be approximately $60.4 million.

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens continue to disagree over the level of reserves requiring
collateralisation. However, following commutations completed in 2006 with Lumbermens with respect to
certain ceding companies and a further release of collateral at the request by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd, on 17
January 2007, the posted collateral was reduced to $125.2 million (31 December 2005 $140.3 million).
Either party may require an independent actuarial estimate of applicable reserves to resolve their
differences with regard to the required collateral calculation. Neither party has required another
independent reserve estimate since the last independent reserve estimate dated as of 30 September 2004.
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37 Exposure to specific credit risk (continued)

Lumbermens risk based capital level allows the lllincis Department of Insurance to assume control of
Lumbermens at its discretion. The mutual obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens described
above are subject to contractual mutual offset provisions under the agreements and as permitted under
llinois faw. Accordingly, having taken legal advice, the Group believes that the Group should not be
exposed to material credit risk resulting from these arrangements with Lumbermens. However, no
assurance can be given that a court would uphold these mutual offset provisions and contractual rights.

38 Related party transactions

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P./Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C.

Certain parties related to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. own in excess of 40% of the Company’'s
issued shares. The Company has certain relationship, management rights, shareholder and advisory fee
agreements, as amended with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P., KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited
Partnership, KKR Partners (International), Limited Partnership and Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C. These
agreements are further described in the Company's Listing Particulars dated 14 November 2003. The
Group pays annual advisory fees of $750,000 to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P., an affiliate of KKR
1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, a shareholder and KKR Partners (International), Limited
Partnership, also a shareholder and $350,000 to Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C., also a shareholder. As at 31
December 2006, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC have received
$750,000 and $350,000, respectively. As at 31 December 2006 the balance due under these
arrangements was $Nil (31 December 2005: $Nil). Certain of the Company's Directors are interested in
these entities as described in the Directors’ Report.

Loans to officers

Loans to officers were offered in connection with their purchase of Company shares and are interest
bearing and except as described below, are full recourse and made on consistent terms as those to other
employees. Mr. M Ricciardelli received a loan of $375,000 in connection with his purchase of pledged
shares at a cost of $750,000 in March 2004 bearing interest at 1 year LIBOR set on the funding date and
reset annually on each anniversary thereof. Mr. M Ricciardelli repaid his loan plus accrued interest in 2006
from the proceeds from the sales of his pledged shares and restricted stock units.

As at 31 December 2006 the Group had loans to key management personnel, in aggregate principal
amounts of $140,000 (31 December 2005: $551,988). The number of key management personnel that had
outstanding loans at 31 December 2006 was 2 (31 December 2005: 7). Key management personnel are as
described below.

Appleby Hunter Baithache

Timothy C Faries, a Director of the Company, is a partner and the Insurance Team Practice Leader at
Appleby Hunter Bailhache, Barristers & Attorneys, in Bermuda. In 2006 the Company paid $49,338 (2005:
$302,227) in respect of fees for legal and corporate administrative services provided by Appleby Hunter
Bailhache.

As at 31 December 2006 the amount outstanding was $373 (31 December 2005: $10,517)
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38 Related party transactions {continued)

Bristol West Insurance Group

During 2004 and 2003, Alea London Limited underwrote a 40% share of an inwards reinsurance contract
with Bristol West Insurance Group (“Bristol West”), a public company traded on the New York Stock
Exchange. This contract was fully commuted and released effective 1 January 2005 and all cash balances
of US$78.7 million due to Bristol West were settled in full in January 2005. The remaining unearned
premium of US$56.5 million has been reversed such that the 2005 financial statements show a reduction in
gross premiums written of US$56.5 million representing the unearned premium balances previously carried
forward. There is no profit or loss impact in 2005 with regards to this contract. The contract was not
renewed in 2005 nor 2006.

Affiliates of a Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. related fund other than the KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas),
Limited Partnership, which controls Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd, the ultimate parent company, held
an interest in 42.18% of the outstanding shares of Bristol West at 31 December 20086.

Mr. J Fisher, who is a director of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd, is the Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of Bristol West and as of 31 December 2006 may be deemed to have beneficial
interests in some or all of 1,053,485 shares or options to acquire shares of Bristol West representing
approximately 3.0% of outstanding shares and may also be deemed to have an interest in some or all of the
shares in Bristol West owned by a KKR affiliate representing 2% of the outstanding shares.

Messes. T Fisher, P Golkin and S Nuttall, who are directors of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd, are
also directors of Bristol West and may be deemed to have beneficial interests in some or all of the shares in
Bristol West controlled by affiliates of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. and representing 42.18% of the
cutstanding shares at 31 December 2006.

The contract was priced and terms and conditions established on an arm's length basis. The co-
participating reinsurers on the contract are companies unrelated to either Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda)
Ltd, Bristol West, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and its related parties or Mr. J. Fisher or his related
parties.

The contract had the following impact on the profit and loss account and balance sheet of the Company:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Income statement $'000 $'000
Net premiums written - (56,473)
As at As at

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Balance Sheet $'000 $'000
Cash paid - (78.677)
Reinsurance debtors . {66,302)
Deferred acquisition costs - (9,600)
Total Assets - (154,579)
Insurance contracts - (98,106)
Unearned premium reserves - (56,473)
Retained eamnings - -
Total Liabilities - (154,579)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 Related party transactions (continued)

Key management personnel

The Group considers its key management personnel to include its Directors and those members of
management reporting directly to its Executive Directors that have executive management responsibility for
Group-wide operations.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and those members of management reporting directly to its Executive
Directors that have executive management responsibility for Group-wide operations, who are the key
management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. For year ended 31 December 2006 this included 13 individuals (2005:
15).

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Short-term employee benefits $3,190,672 $3,507,538
Post-employment benefits $41,571 $138,630
Other long-term benefits $114,783 $154 986
Termination benefits $2,244,314 $3,025,159
Share-based payment $171,830 $262,417
Total $5,763,170 $7,088,730

Key management personnel employment and retention contracts

Members of the Group have entered into employment and retention contracts with Executive Directors
and/or certain members of key management, in each case taking into account the practices in the
jurisdiction where the Group operates. Terms of these agreements as they apply to the Company’s
Directors at year-end 2006 are set out in the Director's Remuneration Report. Termination benefits in the
table above include amounts paid in 2005 and 2006 to departing Executive Directors and certain members
of key management in settlement of such contracts.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management
Stewart Laderman

On 6 April 2005, the Company repurchased Mr. Laderman's 183,880 common shares for GBP
340,178 and 498,688 vested options granted on 19 May 2000 for GBP 69,816 in each case in
accordance with the terms of his stockholder's agreement by reference to the price per common
share on 31 March 2005.

Kirk H Lusk

Mr. Lusk was granted a $49,998 loan in connection with the common share purchase program,
bearing interest at 4.1625% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August, commencing in
2005. The Board approved a deferral of principal repayment on Mr. Lusk's loan in 2005. In October
20086, Mr. Lusk paid the 2006 principal instalment of $10,000 on this loan plus accrued interest of
$2,118 through the instalment payment date.
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 Related party transactions (continued)
Share and loan transactions with members of key management (continued)

Thomas Weidman

Mr. Weidman was granted a $99,999 loan in connection with the share purchase program, bearing
interest at 3.7665% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August commencing in 2006.
The Board approved a deferral of principal and interest on Mr. Weidman's lcan in 2006. In
accordance with the terms of his RSU award, Mr. Weidman was issued 6,543 shares on 21
September 2006.

Amanda Atkins

On 6 April 2005 the Company purchased 35,060 Common Shares held by Ms Atkins for GBP 64,861
in accordance with the terms of her Stockholders’ Agreement at the closing price of a Common Share
on the London Stock Exchange on 31 March 2005. For details regarding the compromise agreement
with Ms Atkins see the Directors’ Remuneration Report section in the Alea Group Annual Report
2005.

Mark L Ricciardelli

In connection with Mr. M Ricciardelli's separation arrangements, on 29 June 2008, the Company
agreed that it would vest all restricted stock units not already vested and deliver the underlying
shares (totalling 70,918 shares) to Mr. M Ricciardelli for sale. A portion of the proceeds of the sale
of such shares, together with the simultaneous sale of shares purchased in 2004 by Mr. M
Ricciardelli (164,821 shares) were used to satisfy the balance of Mr. Ricciardelli's toan of $300,000
plus accrued interest of $13,360 through 31 August 2006, his last day of employment. Mr.
Ricciardelli's options are subject to cancellation in accordance with the terms of his option
agreement.

39 Retirement benefit scheme

Defined contribution schemes

The employees of the Group are covered by defined contribution schemes the costs of which are charged
to the income statement when incurred. The total cost of retirement benefits for the Group in the year
ended 31 December 2006 was $2.6 million (31 December 2005: $4.0 miltion).

40 Group companies

The consolidated financial information presents the financial record of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2006 and 31 December 2005. A list of all investments in Group subsidiaries, including the name
and country of incorporation is given in Note 46. All companies listed in Note 46 are wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group and are fully consolidated into the Group accounts.
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41 Operating leases

At the following balance sheet dates, the Group was committed to paying total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in each of the following periods:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $'000

Land and Land and
buildings Other Total buildings Other Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- within one year 4,048 111 4,159 4,074 33 4,107
- between two and five years 5,561 29 5,590 8,346 31 8,377
- over five years 189 - 189 1,020 - 1,020
9,798 140 9,938 13,440 64 13,504

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under nan-cancellable subleases

at 31 December 2006 was $4.7 million (31 December 2005: $Nil).

The gross amount incurred under operating leases during the period ended 31 December 2006 was $4.9
million (31 December 2005: $5.1 million} before deducting income receivable from subleases of $1.0 million

(31 December 2005: $Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42 Company balance sheet

As at As at
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Assets Notes $'000 $'000
Non-current assets
Company investments in Group subsidiaries 44 535,411 648,885
Property, plant and equipment - 6
535,411 648,891
Current assets
Amounts due from Group subsidiaries 19,370 45,434
Cash and cash equivalents 3,115 224
Dept securities available for sale 127,435 -
Other prepayments and accrued income 308 188
150,228 45,846
Total Assets 685,639 694,737
Current liabilities
Amounts due to Group subsidiaries - 213
Accruals and deferred income 1,924 5,089
1,924 5,302
Total assets less current liabilities 683,715 689,435
Non-current liabilities
Amounts owed to credit institutions 199,574 199,006
199,574 199,006
Net Assets 484,141 490,429
Equity
Share capital 45 1,738 1,737
Other reserves 45 422,484 414,268
Retained earnings 45 59,919 74,424
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 484,141 490,429
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Year ended 31 December 2006
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43 Company cash flow statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
$'000 $°000
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 21,407 (451)
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in Group subsidiaries - 37,089
Repatriation of additional paid in capital in Group subsidiaries 61,554 -
Cash payments to acquire equity and debt securities {127,493) -
Cash receipts from interest income and dividends 60,101 20,066
Net cash (used in)/generated from in investing activities (5,838) 57,155
Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchase of ordinary shares - (2,139)
Issuance of demand note to Group subsidiaries - (34,199)
Dividends paid to Company's sharehclders - (12,203)
Capital raising fees - 568
Interest paid on borrowings (12,678) {8,798)
Net cash used in financing activities (12,678) (56,767)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,891 (63)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 224 287
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3115 224
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44 Company investments in Group subsidiaries

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

$'000 $'000

As at 1 January 648,885 914,016
Disposals during the year - {37,089)
Dividend received from subsidiary (60,000) {20,000)
Repatriation of Capital (61,554) -
Revaluation during the year 8,080 (208,042)
As at 31 December 535,411 648,885

On 28 November 20086, Alea Holdings US repatriated additional paid-in capital of $61.6 million to its parent

company Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

On 8 November 2006, Alea Bermuda Ltd paid a dividend of $60.0 million to its parent company Alea Group

Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

On 27 June 2005, Alea Group Holdings AG was merged with Alea Europe Ltd. The surviving Company was
Alea Europe Ltd. As a result of this merger Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd now holds a direct
investment in Alea Europe Ltd and a reduction of share capital was effected by which $37.1 million was

returned to the parent company.
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45 Statement of changes in equity of the Company

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share

based

Share Share Capital Revaluation Retained payment
capital Premium Reserve reserve earnings reserve Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at 1 January 2006 1,737 629,311 16,098 {231,391) 74,424 250 490,429
Repurchase and sales of shares 1 357 (357) 1
Profit of the period {14,505) {14,505)
Revaluation on investments 8,020 8,020
Movement in share based payment 196 196

reserve
Dividend paid -
As at 31 December 2006 1,738 629,668 16,098 (223,371) 59,919 89 484,141
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share

based

Share Share Capital Revaluation Retained payment
capital Premium Reserve reserve earnings reserve Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at 1 January 2005 1,744 631,439 16,098 (23,349) 90,467 11 716,510
Repurchase and sales of shares (7) {2,128) (2,135)
Profit of the period (3,840) (3.840)
Revaluation on investments (208,042) {208,042)
Movement in share based payment reserve 139 139
Dividend paid {12,203) {12,203)
As at 31 December 2005 1,737 629,311 16,098 (231,391) 74,424 250 490,429
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Year ended 31 December 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 Group subsidiaries

The ultimate parent company of the Group is Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation {or

Proportion of

Proportion of

Method used to

account for

registration) and ownership voting power 1
Name of subsidiary operation interest held investment
Alea Europe Ltd Switzerland 100 100 Equity method
Alea (Bermuda) Ltd Bermuda 100 100 Equity method
Alea Holdings US Company USA 100 100 Equity method
Alea North America insurance Company Usa 100 100 Equity method
Alea North America Company USA 100 100 Equity method
Alea Holdings UK Limited England and Wales 100 100 Equity method
Alea London Limited England and Wales 100 100 Equity method
Alea Services UK Limited England and Wales 100 100 Equity method
Alea Services AG 2 Switzerland 100 100 Equity method
AHUSCO Statutory Trust | USA 100 100 Equity method
AHUSCO Statutory Trust Il USA 100 100 Equity method
AHUSCO Statutory Trust Il USA 100 100 Equity method

All companies are fully consolidated in Group accounts as mentioned in Note 40.
IRM International Reinsurance Management AG changed its name to Alea Services AG on 14

December 2006.

In 2006 the following five entities were liguidated: Alea Jersey Limited, Alea Global Risk Limited, Alea
Holdings Guernsey Limited, Alea Financial UK Limited and Alea Technology Limited. Alea North America
Specialty Insurance Company was sold on 29 September 2006 as disclosed in Note 10.
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Forward looking statements

Certain statements made in this report that are not based on current or historical facts are forward-looking
in nature including, without limitation, statements containing the words ‘believes,’ ‘anticipates,” ‘plans,’
‘projects,” ‘intends,’ ‘expects,’ ‘estimates,’ ‘predicts,’ ‘targets’ and words of similar import. All statements
other than statements of historical facts including, without limitation, those regarding the Group's financial
position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations (including
development plans and objectives) are forward-looking statements. Such forward-locking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that could cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially different from future resuits,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In particular,
forecasting of reserves for future losses is based on historical experience and future assumptions. As a
result they are inherently subjective and may fluctuate based on actual future experience and changes to
current or future trends in the legal, social or economic environment. Forward-looking statements are based
on numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present and future business strategies and the
environment in which the Group will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as
at the date of this report or other information concerned. Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda} Ltd expressty
disclaims any obligations or undertaking {other than reporting obligations imposed on us in relation to our
listing on the London Stock Exchange) to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-looking
statements contained herein to reflect any changes in the Group's expectations with regard thereto or any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based. References in this
paragraph to the Group are to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd and its subsidiaries from time to time.

Registrar

Appleby Corporate Services (Bermuda) Ltd., Canon’s Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. T +1 441 295 1443

United Kingdom transfer agent, paying agent and depositary interests registrar

Shareholders based in the United Kingdom who hold share certificates and holders of depositary interests
on the CREST system should contact:

Capita IRG Plc, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent BR3 4TU, United Kingdom.
T 0870 162 3100 (within the UK) or +44 20 8632 2157 (outside the UK).

Alea has appointed Capita IRG Plc as a transfer agent in the United Kingdom with the authority to remit
transfers to the registrar or the branch registrar in respect of shareholders holding share certificates in the
United Kingdom and to act as paying agent for alt depositary interest holders and shareholders.

United States transfer agent and branch registrar

Shareholders holding share certificates (other than shareholders based in the United Kingdom) or shares
via book entry through our United States Transfer Agent and Branch Registrar should contact:

Mellon Investor Services LLC, 480 Washington Boulevard,
Jersey City, New Jerséy 07310, United States.
T 1 800 522 6645 {within the US) or +1 201 329 8660 (outside the US).

Alea has appointed Mellon Investor Services LLC as a branch registrar to manage the shareholder register,
ensuring that all information held about Alea’s shareholders is kept up to date.
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Changes to personal details

As a shareholder or a holder of a depositary interest in CREST, you may be sent information about Alea. If
you are a shareholder based in the United Kingdom who holds share certificates or the holder of depositary
interests on the CREST system, it is important to ensure that Capita IRG Plc is kept up to date about any
changes to your personal details, such as your name and home address. If you otherwise hold share
certificates or shares via book entry through our United States transfer agent and branch registrar, it is
important to ensure that Mellon Investor Services LLC is kept up to date about any changes to your
personal details, such as your name and home address. Further details are given in the frequently asked
questions section.

Internet

The annual report and accounts, interim statements and other useful information on the Company are
available through the internet at www.aleagroup.com.

Annual General Meeting

We welcome the views of shareholders and hope that you will be able to attend the Company's Annual
General Meeting, which will be held at:

The Fairmont Hamilton Princess Hotel, 76 Pitts Bay Road,
Pembroke HM 08, Bermuda.

at 10:00 am Bermuda time on 26 June 2007. The Notice of the Meeting and the Proxy Form accompany
this document. If you are unable to attend the Annual General Meeting to ask a question in person, you
may write to us at:

Crown House, 3rd Floor, PO Box HM 2983, 4 Par-la-Ville Road,
Hamilton HM 08, Bermuda

or contact us through our Group website at www.aleagroup.com.

Shareholder information

For further information about Alea, please contact Kirk H Lusk, Group Chief Financial Officer, or Mark
Cloutier, Group Chief Executive Officer c/o Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd., Crown House, 3" Floor,
PO Box HM 2983, 4 Par-la-Ville Road, Hamilton HM 08, Bermuda. T +1 441 296 9150. E mail:
mark.cloutier@aleagroup.com or kirk.lusk@aleagroup.com..

The Group's share price is shown on the Company's website and on www_londonstockexchange.com.

Registered office

Canon’'s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.
T +1 441 295 2244

Registered number in Bermuda
31408

Worldwide Group office

Crown House, 3rd Floor, PO Box HM 2983, 4 Par-la-Ville Road,
Hamilton HM 08, Bermuda. T +1 441 296 9150
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Q: | have recently moved. Who should | tell?
A: If you hold depositary interests on the CREST
system or are a shareholder based in the United
Kingdom who holds share certificates, you should
notify Capita 1IRG Plc in writing at the address
indicated above, remembering to clearly state
your old address. If you otherwise hold share
certificates or shares via book entry through our
United States transfer agent and branch registrar,
you should notify Mellon Investor Services LLC in
writing at the address indicated above,
remembering to clearly state your old address. If
you hold shares in joint names, the shares will be
registered in the name of the person who
appears first on your share cerlificate and the
letter must be signed by them.

Q: What do 1 de if | change my name?

A: To ensure the depositary interests or shares
are registered in your new name, you will need to
notify Capita IRG Ple in writing if you hold
depositary interests on the CREST system or are
a shareholder based in the United Kingdom who
holds share certificates. You will need to notify
Mellon investor Services LLC if you otherwise
hold share certificates or shares via book entry
through our United States transfer agent and
branch registrar. You will also need to enclose
evidence of the change, for example, a marriage
certificate or change of name deed (please do
not send the original), or a certified name change
document if you are a company or other entity,
together with your share certificates, if applicable,
and any uncashed dividend cheques. New
documents can then be issued in the correct
name.

Q: My share certificate has been lost/stolen.
What should | do to obtain a replacement?

A: You should immediately inform Capita IRG Plc
if you are a shareholder based in the United
Kingdom, or Mellon Investor Services LLC if you
are not a shareholder based in the United
Kingdom. They will require you to pay an
administration charge, and they will send you a
form of indemnity. The indemnity is required to
protect Alea from the potentia! misuse of the
missing share certificate and must be returned
before a new certificate can be issued.

Q: | would like to transfer shares to someone |
know. How do | arrange this?

A: As these fransactions do not involve a
stockbroker, you can use a stock transfer form.
You can obtain a form from Capita IRG Pl¢ if you
are a shareholder based in the United Kingdom
who holds share certificates. You can obtain a
form from Mellon Investor Services LLC if you
otherwise hold share certificates or shares via
book entry through our United States transfer
agent and branch registrar.
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Q: My partner/relative has died. What should |
do about their shareholding?

A: Contact Capita IRG Plc if your partner/relative
held depositary interests on the CREST system
or was a shareholder based in the United
Kingdom who held share certificates and they will
guide you through what you need to do. Contact
Mellon Investor Services LLC if vyour
partner/relative otherwise held share certificates
or shares via book entry through our United
States transfer agent and branch registrar, and
they will guide you through what you need to do.

Q: 1 receive multiple sets of information
whenever you send anything to me. How can |
make sure that in the future only one copy is
sent?

A: If you have acquired shares on more than one
occasion, your shareholdings may have been
recorded on the share register with slightly
different details. As a result, two or more
accounts may have been set up for you.
Sometimes we need to maintain more than one
account, for example, if you hold shares in your
own name and also in joint names with your
partner; however sometimes mulliple accounts
can be amalgamated. Please notify Capita IRG
Plc or Mellon Investor Services LLC, as
appropriate, of any accounts you believe should
be amalgamated. They will do so if it is possible.

Q: Can | elect to receive any dividend or
distribution payment in a currency other than
US Dollars?

A: Yes. Shareholders will have the option to
receive dividends in US Dollars, British Pounds
or Swiss Francs. Shareholders may make
currency elections by returning a currency
election form to the paying agent, Capita IRG Plc.
A currency election form can be gbtained from
Capita IRG Plc. If no election is made,
shareholders will receive US Dollars. If a
shareholder has already submitted a currency
election form, future dividend payments will
continue be made in accordance with that
election unless they submit a new form to Capita
IRG Plc. The British Pound or Swiss Franc
equivalent of any dividend will be calculated by
reference to an exchange rate prevailing on a
date pricr to payment selected by the Company.
Dividend cheques will be drawn on a UK bank
account.
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JUNE

26 June 2007
Annual General Mesting

SEPTEMBER

19 September 2007
Announcement of results for six months ending 30 June 2007

APRIL

4 April 2008*
Announcement of results for 2007

* Provisional date
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